

March 30, 2022

Dear Fellow Shareholder:

You are cordially invited to attend the 2022 Annual Meeting of Shareholders of Western New England Bancorp, Inc. (the "Company" or "WNEB"), the holding company for Westfield Bank (the "Bank"), which will be held on May 11, 2022, at 10:00 a.m., Eastern Daylight Time, at the Sheraton Springfield Monarch Place Hotel, One Monarch Place, Springfield, Massachusetts, 01144. However, while we intend to hold the Annual Meeting of Shareholders (the "Annual Meeting") in person, we are actively monitoring the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic. We are sensitive to the public health and travel concerns our shareholders may have and the protocols that federal, state and local governments may impose. In the event we determine, in our sole discretion, that it is not possible to hold the Annual Meeting in person, we will announce alternative meeting arrangements, which may include changing the location of the meeting or holding the meeting by means of remote communication (i.e., virtual meeting), as promptly as practicable. You are encouraged to monitor our investor relations website at wneb.q4ir.com for updated information about the Annual Meeting.

The enclosed Notice of Annual Meeting of Shareholders and Proxy Statement describe the formal business that we will transact at the Annual Meeting, which includes:

- The election of two (2) directors;
- An advisory, non-binding vote on our 2021 executive compensation;
- Ratification of the appointment of Wolf and Company, P.C. ("Wolf & Company") as our independent registered public accounting firm for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2022;
- A report on the operations of the Company; and
- Act upon such other business as may properly come before the meeting.

The Board of Directors of the Company (the "Board") has fixed the close of business on March 15, 2022, as the record date for the determination of shareholders entitled to notice of, and to vote at, the Annual Meeting. directors and officers of the Company will be present to answer any questions that you and other shareholders may have. Our Annual Report on Form 10-K, which contains detailed information concerning the activities and operating performance of the Company, is available for review on our website at wneb.q4ir. com/financials/proxy-materials and www.viewproxy.com/WNEB/2022.

It is important that your shares be represented at the Annual Meeting and voted in accordance with your wishes. Whether or not you plan to attend the Annual Meeting, please promptly submit your proxy by telephone, internet or mail. Your vote is important regardless of the number of shares you own. Voting by proxy will not prevent you from voting in person at the Annual Meeting but will assure that your vote is counted if you cannot attend.

The Board has determined that an affirmative vote on the matters to be considered at the Annual Meeting is in the best interests of Western New England Bancorp, Inc. and its shareholders, and the Board unanimously recommends a vote "FOR" these matters. We appreciate your participation and interest in Western New England Bancorp, Inc.

Sincerely yours,

James C. Hagan
Chief Executive Officer

James C. Hagan

Lisa G. McMahon *Chairperson*

Lisa G Mc Mahon

IF YOU HAVE ANY QUESTIONS, PLEASE CALL US AT (413) 568-1911.

WESTERN NEW ENGLAND BANCORP, INC.

141 Elm Street Westfield, Massachusetts 01085 (413) 568-1911

NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

DATE Wednesday, May 11, 2022 **TIME** 10:00 A.M. Eastern time

PLACE Sheraton Springfield Monarch Place Hotel

One Monarch Place

Springfield, Massachusetts 01114

ITEMS OF BUSINESS

- (1) Election of the nominees named in the attached Proxy Statement as directors to serve on the Board for a term of office stated.
- (2) Consideration and approval of a non-binding advisory resolution on the compensation of our Named Executive Officers.
- (3) Ratification of the appointment of Wolf & Company as our independent registered public accounting firm for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2022.
- (4) Consideration of any other business properly brought before the Annual Meeting and any adjournment or postponement thereof.

RECORD DATE

The record date for the Annual Meeting is March 15, 2022. Only shareholders of record as of the close of business on that date may vote at the Annual Meeting or any adjournment thereof.

PROXY VOTING

You are cordially invited to attend the Annual Meeting in person. Whether or not you expect to attend the Annual Meeting, please promptly submit your proxy by telephone, internet or, if you have received printed materials, by signing and returning the Proxy Card by mail. Submitting a proxy will not prevent you from attending the Annual Meeting and voting in person. Please note, however, that if your shares are held of record by a broker, bank or other nominee and you wish to vote at the Annual Meeting, you must obtain a proxy issued in your name from that record holder.

By Order of the Board of Directors, Western New England Bancorp, Inc.

James C. Hagan

Chief Executive Officer

James C. Hagar

Westfield, Massachusetts March 30, 2022

It is important that your shares be represented and voted at the Annual Meeting. Shareholders whose shares are held in registered form have a choice of voting by Proxy Card, telephone or the internet, as described on your Proxy Card. Shareholders whose shares are held in the name of a broker, bank or other holder of record must vote in the manner directed by such holder. Check your Proxy Card or the information forwarded by your broker, bank or other holder of record to see which options are available to you.

Important Notice Regarding the Availability of Proxy Materials for the 2022 Annual Meeting of Shareholders: This Proxy Statement for the 2022 Annual Meeting of Shareholders, the 2021 Annual Report to Shareholders, the Proxy Card and voting instructions are available free of charge on our website at wneb.q4ir.com/financials/proxy-materials and www.viewproxy.com/WNEB/2022.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

INICODMATION ADOLET THE ANNIHAL MEETING	
INFORMATION ABOUT THE ANNUAL MEETING	
General	
Notice Regarding the Availability of Proxy Materials	
Obtaining a Copy of the Proxy Statement and Annual Report on Form 10-K	
Who Can Vote at the Annual Meeting	
Voting Procedures	
Quorum Requirement	
Proposals and Vote Requirements	
Effect of Broker Non-Votes	
Confidential Voting Policy	
Revoking Your Proxy	
Solicitation of Proxies	
Submission of Shareholder Proposals and Nominations for the 2023 Annual Meeting	
PROPOSAL 1 – ELECTION OF DIRECTORS	
Vote Required	
Our Recommendation	
NFORMATION ABOUT OUR BOARD OF DIRECTORS	
General	
Board Diversity	
Board Refreshment	
Director Competencies	
Nominees	
Continuing Directors	
NFORMATION ABOUT OUR EXECUTIVE OFFICERS WHO ARE NOT DIRECTORS	
Retired Executive Officers	
In Memoriam	
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE	
Board of Directors	
Board of Directors Independence	
Code of Ethics and Corporate Governance Guidelines	
Hedging and Pledging of Company Securities	
Committees of the Board of Directors	
Communicating with the Board of Directors	
Board Leadership Structure and Role in Risk Oversight	
Environmental, Social and Governance Highlights	
Shareholder Engagement	
COMPENSATION DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS	
Executive Summary	
Company Performance	
Advisory Vote On NEO Compensation	
Best Practices in Executive Compensation	
Our Decision-Making Process	
Compensation Philosophy	
Compensation Components	
Clawback Policy	
Stock Ownership Guidelines	
Other Benefits	
Benchmarking Data and Use of Compensation Consultants	

EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION	31
Summary Compensation Table	31
CEO Pay Ratio Disclosure	32
Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year End	32
Option Exercises and Stock Vesting	33
Pension Benefits	33
Non-Qualified Deferred Compensation	34
DIRECTOR COMPENSATION	35
Meeting and Chairperson Fees	35
Equity Retainer Grant	35
Deferred Compensation Plan	35
Stock Ownership Guidelines	36
Non-Employee Director Stock Election Program	36
TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PERSONS	37
Related-Person Transactions Policy and Procedures	37
Transactions with Certain Related Persons	37
DELINQUENT SECTION 16(A) REPORTS	38
SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT	39
Principal Shareholders	39
Security Ownership of Management	40
PROPOSAL 2 – NON-BINDING ADVISORY RESOLUTION ON THE COMPENSATION OF THE	
NAMED EXECUTIVE OFFICERS	42
Vote Required	42
Our Recommendation	42
General	42
PROPOSAL 3 – RATIFICATION OF APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM	43
Vote Required	43
Our Recommendation	43
Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm Fees and Services	43
HOUSEHOLDING OF PROXY MATERIALS	44
OTHER MATTERS	44

WESTERN NEW ENGLAND BANCORP, INC.

141 Elm Street Westfield, Massachusetts 01085 (413) 568-1911

PROXY STATEMENT FOR THE 2022 ANNUAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS TO BE HELD ON MAY 11, 2022

INFORMATION ABOUT THE ANNUAL MEETING

General

Western New England Bancorp, Inc. a Massachusetts-chartered stock holding company, is registered as a savings and loan holding company with the Federal Reserve Board and owns all of the capital stock of Westfield Bank. As used in this Proxy Statement, "we," "us," "our" and "Company" refer to Western New England Bancorp, Inc. and/or its subsidiaries, depending on the context. Our common stock is listed on the NASDAQ Global Select Market ("NASDAQ") under the symbol "WNEB." The term "Annual Meeting," as used in this Proxy Statement, means the 2022 Annual Meeting of shareholders and includes any adjournment or postponement of such meeting.

We have sent you this Proxy Statement and the Proxy Card because our Board of Directors ("Board") is soliciting your proxy to vote at the Annual Meeting. This Proxy Statement summarizes the information you will need to know to cast an informed vote at the Annual Meeting. You do not need to attend the Annual Meeting to vote your shares. You may vote by proxy over the telephone, internet or by mail, and your votes will be cast for you at the Annual Meeting. This process is described below in the section entitled "Voting Procedures."

We made available this Proxy Statement, the Notice of Annual Meeting of Shareholders and the Proxy Card on or about March 30, 2022, to all shareholders of record entitled to vote. If you owned our common stock as of the close of business on March 15, 2022, the record date, you are entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting.

Notice Regarding the Availability of Proxy Materials

Pursuant to rules adopted by the Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC"), we have elected to provide access to our proxy materials over the internet. Accordingly, we are sending an Important Notice Regarding the Availability of Proxy Materials (the "Notice") to our shareholders of record. All shareholders will have the ability to access the proxy materials on the website referred to in the Notice or request to receive a printed set of the proxy materials. Instructions on how to access the proxy materials over the internet or to request a printed copy may be found in the Notice.

Obtaining a Copy of the Proxy Statement and Annual Report on Form 10-K

A copy of the Proxy Statement and our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2021, (without exhibits) will be provided free of charge, upon request, to any registered or beneficial owner of common stock entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting. If you want to receive a paper or e-mail copy of the Proxy Statement or Annual Report, please follow the instructions provided with your Notice and on your Proxy Card or voter instruction form.

If requesting materials by e-mail, please send a blank e-mail with the Control Number that is printed on the Notice in the subject line. Requests, instructions and other inquiries sent to this e-mail address will NOT be forwarded to your investment advisor. Please make the request as instructed above on or before May 2, 2022, to facilitate timely delivery.

The SEC also maintains a website at www.sec.gov that contains reports, Proxy Statements and other information regarding registrants, including the Company.

Who Can Vote at the Annual Meeting?

Only shareholders of record as of the close of business on March 15, 2022, will be entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting. On this record date, there were 22,802,029 shares of common stock outstanding and entitled to vote.

If on March 15, 2022, your shares were registered directly in your name with our transfer agent, Computershare, then you are a shareholder of record. As a shareholder of record, you may vote in person at the Annual Meeting or vote by proxy.

Voting Procedures

Your vote is important and you are encouraged to vote your shares promptly. Each proxy submitted will be voted as directed. For all matters to be voted on, you may vote "FOR" or "AGAINST" or abstain from voting. However, if a proxy solicited by the Board does not specify how it is to be voted, it will be voted as the Board recommends—that is:

- Proposal 1 "FOR" the election of each of the two (2) nominees for director named in this Proxy Statement;
- Proposal 2 "FOR" the approval, on an advisory basis, of the compensation of our Named Executive Officers;
- Proposal 3 "**FOR**" the ratification of the appointment of Wolf and Company.

The procedures for voting are as follows:

Shareholder of Record: Shares Registered in Your Name

If you are a shareholder of record, you may (a) vote in person at the Annual Meeting or (b) vote by proxy. Whether or not you plan to attend the Annual Meeting, we urge you to vote by proxy over the telephone, internet or by mail as instructed below to ensure your vote is counted. You may still attend the Annual Meeting and vote in person even if you have already voted by proxy.

- To vote in person, come to the Annual Meeting and we will give you a ballot when you arrive.
- To vote over the telephone, dial toll-free 1-866-804-9616 using a touch-tone phone and follow the recorded instructions. You will be asked to provide the Control Number from your Notice. Your vote must be received by 11:59 P.M., Eastern Daylight Time on May 10, 2022, to be counted.
- To vote on the internet, go to www.AALvote.com/WNEB to complete an electronic Proxy Card. You will be asked to provide the Control Number from your Notice. Your vote must be received by 11:59 P.M., Eastern Daylight Time on May 10, 2022, to be counted.
- To vote by mail, simply request a copy of the Proxy Statement as indicated above, which will include a Proxy Card and then complete, sign and date the Proxy Card and return it promptly in the envelope provided. If you return your signed Proxy Card to us before the Annual Meeting, the designated proxy holders will vote your shares as you direct.

If you sign the Proxy Card but do not make specific choices, your proxy will vote your shares "FOR" Proposals 1, 2 and 3 as set forth in the Notice of Annual Meeting of Shareholders.

If any other matter is presented at the Annual Meeting, your proxy will vote the shares represented by all properly executed proxies on such matters as a majority of the Board determines. As of the date of this Proxy Statement, we know of no other matters that may be presented at the Annual Meeting, other than those listed in the Notice of Annual Meeting of Shareholders.

Beneficial Owner: Shares Registered in the Name of Broker or Bank

If on March 15, 2022, your shares were held not in your name, but rather in an account at a brokerage firm, bank, dealer or other similar organization, then you are the beneficial owner of shares held in "street name" and these proxy materials are being forwarded to you by that organization. The organization holding your account is considered to be the shareholder of record for purposes of voting at the Annual Meeting.

As a beneficial owner, you have the right to direct your broker or other agent regarding how to vote the shares in your account. You should have received a Proxy Card and voting instructions with these proxy materials from that organization rather than from us. Simply complete and mail the Proxy Card and voting instructions to ensure that your vote is counted. Alternatively, you may vote by telephone or over the internet as instructed by your broker or bank, if applicable. To vote in person at the Annual Meeting, you must obtain a valid proxy from your broker, bank or other agent. Follow the instructions from your broker or bank included with these proxy materials, or contact your broker or bank to request a proxy form.

Employee Stock Ownership Plan

Each participant in our Employee Stock Ownership Plan Trust (the "ESOP") has the right to direct True Integrity Fiduciary Services, as trustee of the ESOP ("TI-Trust"), as to how to vote his or her proportionate interests in all allocated shares of common stock held in the ESOP. TI-Trust will vote any unallocated shares, as well as any allocated shares as to which no voting instructions are received, in the same proportion as the shares for which voting instructions have been received. TI-Trust's duties with respect to voting the common stock in the ESOP is governed by the fiduciary provisions of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended ("ERISA"). The fiduciary provisions of ERISA may require, in certain limited circumstances, that TI-Trust override the votes of participants with respect to the common stock held by TI-Trust and to determine, in TI-Trust's best judgment, how to vote the shares. Your voting instructions must be received by 11:59 P.M., Eastern Daylight Time on May 4, 2022, to be counted.

401(k) Plan Shares

Each participant in our 401(k) Plan has the right to direct Delaware Charter & Trust Company, a Delaware Corporation conducting business under the trade name of The Principal Trust Company, as trustee of the 401(k) Plan ("Principal Trust"), as to how to vote his or her proportionate interests in all allocated shares of common stock held in the 401(k) Plan. Principal Trust will vote any unallocated shares, as well as any allocated shares as to which no voting instructions are received, in the same proportion as the shares for which voting instructions have been received. Principal Trust's duties with respect to voting the common stock in the 401(k) Plan are governed by the fiduciary provisions of ERISA. The fiduciary provisions of ERISA may require, in certain limited circumstances, that Principal Trust override the votes of participants with respect to the common stock held by Principal Trust and to determine, in Principal Trust's best judgment, how to vote the shares. Your voting instruction must be received by 11:59 P.M., Eastern Daylight Time on May 4, 2022, to be counted.

Quorum Requirement

A quorum is necessary to hold a valid Annual Meeting. A quorum will be present if shareholders holding at least a majority of our outstanding shares of common stock entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting are present at the Annual Meeting in person or are represented by proxy. On the record date, there were 22,802,029 shares of common stock outstanding and entitled to vote. Thus, the holders of 11,629,035 shares of common stock must be present in person or represented by proxy at the Annual Meeting to have a quorum.

Your shares will be counted towards the quorum only if you submit a valid proxy (or one is submitted on your behalf by your broker, bank or other nominee) or if you vote in person at the Annual Meeting or vote by proxy over the telephone or the internet as instructed above. Abstentions and broker non-votes will be counted towards the quorum requirement. If there is no quorum, the holders of a majority of shares present at the Annual Meeting in person or represented by proxy may adjourn the Annual Meeting to another date.

Proposals and Vote Requirements

Proposal 1: Election of Directors

Directors will be elected by a plurality of the votes cast at the Annual Meeting by the holders of shares present in person or represented by proxy and entitled to vote on the election of directors. Plurality means that the individuals who receive the largest number of "FOR" votes cast are elected as directors up to the maximum number of directors to be chosen at the Annual Meeting. Abstentions and broker non-votes will not affect the outcome of the election of directors. You may not vote your shares cumulatively for the election of directors.

<u>Proposal 2: Consideration and Approval of a Non-Binding Advisory Resolution on the Compensation of Our Named Executive Officers</u>

The approval of the non-binding advisory resolution on the compensation of our Named Executive Officers will require "FOR" votes from a majority of the votes cast at the Annual Meeting by the holders of shares present in person or represented by proxy and entitled to vote on this proposal. Abstentions are not counted as votes cast and they will have no effect on the vote. Brokers do not have discretionary authority to vote shares on this proposal without direction from the beneficial owner. Therefore, broker non-votes will have no effect on the vote.

Proposal 3: Ratification of Appointment of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The ratification of Wolf & Company, as our independent registered public accounting firm for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2022, will require "FOR" votes from a majority of the votes cast at the Annual Meeting by the holders of shares present in person or represented by proxy and entitled to vote on this proposal. Abstentions and broker non-votes are not counted as votes cast and they will have no effect on the vote.

Effect of Broker Non-Votes

Broker non-votes are proxies received from brokers or other nominees holding shares on behalf of their clients who have not been given specific voting instructions from their clients with respect to non-routine matters. Brokers who hold their customers' shares in "street name" may, under the applicable rules of the exchange and other self-regulatory organizations of which the brokers are members, sign and submit proxies for such shares and may vote such shares on routine matters, which typically include the ratification of the appointment of our independent registered public accounting firm. Proposals 1 and 2 are considered "non-routine" under New York Stock Exchange Rules ("NYSE"), which govern NYSE brokerage members.

If your broker returns a proxy but does not vote on a proposal, this will constitute a broker non-vote. A broker non-vote will have no effect on the outcome of any proposal.

Confidential Voting Policy

The Company maintains a policy of keeping shareholder votes confidential. Only the Inspector of Election and certain employees of our independent tabulating agent examine the voting materials. We will not disclose your vote to management unless it is necessary to meet legal requirements.

Revoking Your Proxy

You may revoke your grant of proxy at any time before the final vote at the Annual Meeting. If you are the shareholder of record, you may revoke your proxy in any one of the following four ways:

- filing a written revocation of the proxy with our Secretary;
- entering a new vote over the internet or by telephone;
- attending and voting in person at the Annual Meeting; or
- submitting another signed Proxy Card bearing a later date.

If your shares are held by your broker, bank or another party as a nominee or agent, you should follow the instructions provided by such party in order to revoke your proxy.

Your personal attendance at the Annual Meeting does not revoke your proxy. Your last vote, prior to or at the Annual Meeting, is the vote that will be counted.

Solicitation of Proxies

We will bear the cost of solicitation of proxies, including preparation, assembly, printing and mailing of the Notice of Annual Meeting of Shareholders, the Proxy Card and any additional information furnished to shareholders. We have engaged Alliance Advisors as our proxy solicitor to help us solicit proxies for a fee of \$15,000, plus reasonable out-of-pocket expense. Copies of solicitation materials will be furnished to banks, brokerage houses, fiduciaries and custodians holding in their names shares of our common stock beneficially owned by others to forward to such beneficial owners. We may reimburse persons representing beneficial owners of our common stock for their costs of forwarding solicitation materials to such beneficial owners. Original solicitation of proxies by mail may be supplemented by telephone, telegram or personal solicitation by our directors, officers or other regular employees or by a firm engaged to do the same by such individuals. No additional compensation will be paid to directors, officers or other regular employees for such services.

Submission of Shareholder Proposals and Nominations for the 2023 Annual Meeting

If you wish to submit proposals to be included in our Proxy Statement for the 2023 Annual Meeting of shareholders (the "2023 Annual Meeting") pursuant to Rule 14a-8 (as defined below), we must receive them on or before November 30, 2022. Nothing in this paragraph shall be deemed to require us to include in our Proxy Statement and Proxy Card for the 2023 Annual Meeting any shareholder proposal which does not meet the requirements of the SEC in effect at the time. Any such proposal will be subject to 17 C.F.R. §240.14a-8 of the Rules and Regulations promulgated by the SEC under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act").

Under our Amended and Restated Bylaws ("Bylaws"), if you wish to nominate a director or bring other business before the 2023 Annual Meeting, which is not included in the Proxy Statement for the 2023 Annual Meeting, the following criteria must be met: (i) you must be a shareholder of record; (ii) you must have given timely notice in writing to our Secretary; and (iii) your notice must contain specific information required in Article I, Section 6 of our Bylaws, which are on file with the SEC. These notice provisions require that nominations of persons for election to the Board and the proposal of business to be considered by the shareholders for the 2023 Annual Meeting must be received no earlier than October 31, 2022, and no later than November 30, 2022.

In addition to satisfying the foregoing advance notice requirements under our Bylaws, to comply with the universal proxy rules under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, shareholders who intend to solicit proxies in support of director nominees other than the Company's nominees must provide notice that sets forth the information required by Rule 14a-19 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, no later than March 12, 2023.

PROPOSAL 1

ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The Board, upon recommendation of its Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee, has nominated the following two (2) individuals named in the table below for election as directors. All nominees have consented to being named in this Proxy Statement and to serve if elected. If you elect all the nominees listed below, they will hold office until the Annual Meeting of shareholders noted within the table below or until their successors have been elected and qualified.

If any nominee is unable or does not qualify to serve, you or your proxy may vote for another nominee proposed by the Board. If for any reason these nominees prove unable or unwilling to stand for election or cease to qualify to serve as directors, the Board will nominate alternates or reduce the size of the Board to eliminate the vacancies. The Board has no reason to believe that any of the nominees would prove unable to serve if elected. There are no arrangements or understandings between us and any director, or nominee for directorship, pursuant to which such person was selected as a director or nominee.

		Term to		Director
Name of Nominee	Age ⁽¹⁾	Expire	Position Held	Since ⁽²⁾
Gary G. Fitzgerald	55	2025	Director	2016
Paul C. Picknelly	61	2025	Director	2016

⁽¹⁾ Age at May 11, 2022

Vote Required

Directors are elected by a plurality of the votes cast at the Annual Meeting by the holders of shares present in person or represented by proxy and entitled to vote on the election of directors. The nominees for director who receive the most votes will be elected. You may not vote your shares cumulatively for the election of directors. For purposes of the election of directors, shares for which voting authority is withheld and broker non-votes will have no effect on the result of the vote.



THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS UNANIMOUSLY RECOMMENDS A VOTE "FOR ALL" THE NOMINEES FOR ELECTION AS DIRECTORS SET FORTH ABOVE.

⁽²⁾ Includes terms served on the Board of Westfield Bank, as applicable.

INFORMATION ABOUT OUR BOARD OF DIRECTORS

General

Our Board currently consists of ten (10) members, each who have the highest ethical character and personal and professional reputations consistent with the Company's image and reputation, and also who demonstrate integrity and a willingness to appropriately challenge management. The name, age and length of service of each of our nominees and the continuing members of our Board are set forth below:

Gender	70% Men		30%	Women	3	Women Directors
Age	2 in 50s	7 in 60s		1 in 70s	62.8	Avg. Age of Directors
Tenure	6 < ten years		$4 \ge \text{ter}$	4 ≥ ten years		Avg. Tenure of Directors
Independence	90% Independent			10% Non- Independent		Independent Directors

		Term to		Director
Name	$Age^{(1)}$	Expire	Position Held	Since(2)
Gary G. Fitzgerald	55	2022	Director	2016
Paul C. Picknelly	61	2022	Director	2016
Laura Benoit	55	2023	Director	2014
Donna J. Damon	63	2023	Director	2011
Lisa G. McMahon	63	2023	Director, Chairperson of the Board	2014
Steven G. Richter	66	2023	Director	2011
James C. Hagan	61	2024	President, Chief Executive Officer, Director	2009
William D. Masse	66	2024	Director	2016
Gregg F. Orlen	72	2024	Director	2016
Philip R. Smith	66	2024	Director	2009

⁽¹⁾ At May 11, 2022

In accordance with the Company's Bylaws, no person shall be eligible for election, reelection, appointment or reappointment to the Board if such person reached seventy-two (72) years of age or older on appointment or reappointment to the Board.

Board Diversity

The Company and the Board strongly believe diversity is critical to the Company's success and creating long-term value for our shareholders. The Board and Executive Management have adopted diversity and inclusion as a key focus of the Company's overall strategic plan. In 2020, the Company proudly announced its first female Chairperson in its 169-year history. With respect to the Board, it is acknowledged that a Board consisting of individuals with diverse backgrounds ensures broader representation and inspires deeper commitment to management, employees and the communities we serve. While not specific to a particular policy, the Board prioritizes diversity in gender, ethnic background and professional experience when considering candidates for director as part of its commitment to diversity. At present, 30% of the Company's Board is diverse from a gender, race or ethnic perspective. In 2022, as required by NASDAQ, the Company began collecting diversity information for our directors. Each of our directors voluntarily self-identified as follows:

⁽²⁾ Includes terms served on the Board of Westfield Bank, as applicable.

Total Number of Directors		10					
	Female	Male	Non-Binary	Did Not Disclose Gender			
Part I: Gender Identity							
Directors	3	6	0	1			
Part II: Demographic Background							
African American or Black	0	0	0	0			
Alaskan Native or Native American	0	0	0	0			
Asian	0	0	0	0			
Hispanic or Latinx	0	0	0	0			
Native Hawaiian or Pacific Island	0	0	0	0			
White	3	6	0	1			
Two or More Races or Ethnicities	0	0	0	0			
LGBTQ+		0					
Did Not Disclose Demographic Background		1					

Board Refreshment

Our Board believes that a fully engaged Board is a strategic asset of the Company and that knowledgeable and fresh viewpoints and perspectives are important for informed decision making. The Board also believes that appropriate tenure can facilitate members developing greater institutional knowledge and deeper insight into the Company's operations across a variety of economic and competitive environments.

Even before vacancies arise, the Board periodically evaluates whether it collectively has the right mix of skills, experience, attributes and diverse viewpoints necessary for it to drive shareholder value. The results of this evaluation are used to help inform the desirable skills set for potential Board nominees and to screen director candidates.

At the same time, as part of planning for Board refreshment and director succession, the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee's practice has been to periodically consider potential director candidates. As a result of this ongoing review, in the last eleven years, the Board has nominated eight new directors, and in the last seven years, the Board has nominated four new directors. The average tenure for the Board is 8.8 years.

With the Board's recommended slate of two nominees, the Board believes that it has an appropriately balanced Board and will continue to consider opportunities to strengthen the Board's composition over time. As a group, the average tenure of the two nominees for election to the Board is approximately 6.0 years.

Director Competencies

Our Board believes that a balance of diversity and tenure is a strategic asset. Our Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee routinely considers director attendance, past performance on the Board and Board committees, institutional knowledge of the Company as well as any other director board commitments when evaluating directors for nomination.

While the Company has not yet instituted a formal policy with regard to its directors' service on other boards, the Company asks that all directors annually disclose the number of boards they serve on and further asks that they devote adequate time for preparation and attendance at all Board and Board committee meetings. During 2021, none of the Company's directors served on the boards of more than three publicly traded companies.

Our Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee also factors in director competencies when placing an existing director into nomination for reelection to the Board. We believe our Board collectively offers a diverse range of qualifications, experiences and key skills that provide an appropriate and diverse mix of qualifications necessary for our Board to effectively fulfill its oversight responsibilities. The summary below is not intended to be an exhaustive list for each director, but rather a summary to convey the general breadth of our directors' collective experience and qualifications. Our directors use these skills and experiences when they oversee the Company's strategy, performance, culture and enterprise risk. Additional information about each Board member's background, business experience and other matters in their biographical information is provided below.

Director Competencies										
	Benoit	Damon	Fitzgerald	Hagan	Masse	McMahon	Orlen	Picknelly	Richter	Smith
C-Suite Leadership – includes strategic										
planning, financial accounting and/										
or reporting, and business development,										
marketing and operations	✓	✓	✓	✓	✓	✓	✓	✓	✓	✓
Corporate Governance, Regulatory and										
Risk Management	✓	✓	✓	✓	✓	✓			✓	✓
Real Estate Development, Management										
and/or General Contracting	✓	✓		✓			✓	✓		✓
Financial Services – includes lending,										
insurance and retirement services	✓		✓	✓	✓					\checkmark
Human Capital Management –										
includes personnel/benefits administration,										
payroll, workforce planning, performance										
management, compensation planning and										
strategy, recruitment and onboarding	✓	✓	✓	✓	✓	✓	✓	✓	✓	✓
Cybersecurity and										
Information Technology	✓								\checkmark	

Director Nominees

The biographies of the nominees below contain information regarding the person's service as a director, business experience, director positions held currently or at any time during the last five years, information regarding involvement in certain legal or administrative proceedings, if applicable, and the experience, qualifications, attributes or skills that caused the Nominating and Governance Committee and the Board to determine that the person should serve as a director.

Gary G. Fitzgerald has been a director of our Board since October 2016. Previously, Mr. Fitzgerald served on the boards of legacy Chicopee Savings Bank and legacy Chicopee Bancorp, Inc. since 2009. Mr. Fitzgerald is a Certified Public Accountant and is a Managing Principal of Downey, Pieciak, Fitzgerald & Co., P.C., a CPA firm located in Springfield, Massachusetts. Mr. Fitzgerald received a Bachelor of Science degree from Western New England University, a Master of Science in Taxation degree from Bentley University and has been licensed as a Certified Public Accountant since 1996. His extensive background in accounting and taxation provides him with the qualifications and skills to serve as a director and as the Company's financial expert.

Paul C. Picknelly has been a director of our Board since October 2016. Previously, Mr. Picknelly served on the boards of legacy Chicopee Savings Bank and legacy Chicopee Bancorp, Inc. since 2000 and 2006, respectively. Mr. Picknelly is a premium hotel owner and operator, as well as a commercial real estate developer. Mr. Picknelly currently serves as President of Monarch Enterprises, LLC (Monarch Place Office Tower, Sheraton Springfield, and the Hilton Garden Inn Hotels in Springfield and Worcester, Massachusetts) and further manages various commercial real estate properties in the local area. Mr. Picknelly brings to the Board his unique and extensive knowledge of the customers, communities and political climate within our marketplace from a premier hotel management and real estate developer perspective.

Continuing Directors

Laura Benoit has been a director of our Board since 2014. Ms. Benoit has been the Treasurer and Co-Owner of Baystate Fuel Oil, Inc. a fuel distribution company located in Agawam, Massachusetts, since 1985. Ms. Benoit also serves as President of Buddy Realty, LLC. Ms. Benoit annually participates in cybersecurity and information technology conferences to stay well-informed of Payment Card Industry Data Security Standards and compliance requirements for her businesses. Ms. Benoit is a former member of the board of directors of the Western Mass Fuel Dealers Association where she served as Treasurer and then President for a period of ten years. Ms. Benoit received an Associate's degree in Business Administration from Holyoke Community College. Ms. Benoit's finance, accounting and small business management experience provides her with the qualifications and skills to serve as a director.

Donna J. Damon has been a director of our Board since 2011. Ms. Damon is the President and owner of New England Concrete Cutting, Inc. a construction company specializing in concrete cutting and drilling located in Agawam, Massachusetts. She also serves as an executive officer and the office manager for two separate companies: Witch Equipment of New England, Inc. and Witch Enterprises, Inc. Ms. Damon's experience in human resources, office management and business administration, including financial management and employee benefit administration, provides her with the qualifications and skills to serve as a director.

James C. Hagan has been a director of our Board since 2009, our Chief Executive Officer since December 31, 2008, and our President since June 2005. Mr. Hagan served as Chief Operating Officer of the Company and Westfield Bank from June 2005 until December 2008. Prior to that, he served as Senior Vice President and Commercial Loan Department Manager of Westfield Bank from 1998. From 1994 through 1998, Mr. Hagan was a Vice President at Westfield Bank. Prior to 1994, Mr. Hagan worked as a commercial lender and manager at other New England based banking institutions. He received a Bachelor of Science from Westfield State University and received a Master of Business Administration from American International College. Mr. Hagan's expertise in credit administration, commercial lending and management through his various roles within the Company and within other New England based banking institutions provides him with the qualifications and skills to serve as a director.

William D. Masse has been a director of our Board since October 2016. Previously, Mr. Masse served on the boards of legacy Chicopee Savings Bank and legacy Chicopee Bancorp, Inc. since 1998 and 2006, respectively. Mr. Masse retired on January 1, 2021, as the President of Granfield, Bugbee & Masse Insurance Agency in Chicopee, Massachusetts. He had been in the insurance industry for 40 years. Mr. Masse holds a Bachelor of the Arts degree from Williams College where he majored in economics. Mr. Masse has, in the past, served as Chairman and/or President of the board of directors of area non-profit organizations. His experience, as well as business and community contacts, provide him with the qualifications and skills to serve as a director.

Lisa G. McMahon has been a director of our Board since 2014 and has served as our Chairperson since 2020, making her the first female Board Chairperson in the Company's 169-year history. Ms. McMahon is the Vice President of Institutional Advancement and Executive Director of the Westfield State Foundation, Inc. at Westfield State University. Ms. McMahon began at Westfield State University in 2013 after leaving Merrill Lynch where she obtained her general securities license and license to become a registered investment advisor representative. Ms. McMahon currently serves as President of the Westfield Academy Foundation and is the past president of the executive board of the Genesis Spiritual and Conference Center – a division of the Sisters of Providence Health Systems. From 2007 to 2012, Ms. McMahon was the Executive Director of the Westfield Business Improvement District, Inc. Ms. McMahon has served on numerous boards and committees in a leadership capacity. Ms. McMahon received a Bachelor of Science degree from Our Lady of the Elms College and an honorary doctorate degree in Public Service from Westfield State University. Ms. McMahon's business experience and extensive work with micro businesses, nonprofit management and community relations provides her with the qualifications and skills to serve as a director.

Gregg F. Orlen has been a director of our Board since October 2016. Previously, Mr. Orlen served on the boards of legacy Chicopee Savings Bank and legacy Chicopee Bancorp, Inc. since 1999 and 2006, respectively. Mr. Orlen is the owner of Gregg Orlen Custom Homebuilders and works as an excavating contractor. Mr. Orlen served on the development committee for South Hadley's municipal golf course, The Ledges, and was responsible for the oversight of its construction phase. Mr. Orlen remained on the golf course commission, while a resident of South Hadley. Mr. Orlen holds a Bachelor of Science in Business Management. Mr. Orlen is a well-established premier builder of residential homes within our market and brings to the Board his extensive knowledge of the local housing market.

Steven G. Richter has been a director of our Board since 2011. Dr. Richter is the founder, former owner, operator and President of Micro Test Laboratories, Inc. a contract testing and manufacturing support operation for the pharmaceutical and biotechnology industries. Dr. Richter is the manager of Richco Laboratories LLC, which is a life science consulting and testing operation. Dr. Richter is a registered microbiologist with both the American Society of Clinical Pathology and the American Society for Microbiology. Dr. Richter has completed a graduate-level course in mobile device forensics at Baypath University and additionally attended multiple cybersecurity workshops during a Bank Directors conference. Dr. Richter serves on the boards of the Holyoke Community College Biotech Advisory Board and the Westfield State University Life Science Advisory Board. Dr. Richter is also actively involved in research and development with the University of Massachusetts and is an IALS Institute advisory board member. Dr. Richter previously served in a biotechnological advisory capacity for small business with Governor Romney and is a past FDA microbiologist and accredited regulatory affairs professional. Dr. Richter is a graduate of the University of Massachusetts with a Bachelor's of Science in Microbiology and went on to receive his Master of Sciences degree in Biological Sciences from the University of Massachusetts-Lowell and his Ph.D. in Sterilization Sciences from Columbia Pacific University. Dr. Richter's experience in small business administration and management, including financial and business operations matters, provides him with the qualifications and skills to serve as a director.

Philip R. Smith has been a director of our Board since 2009. Prior to Mr. Smith's directorship, he served as Secretary to the Company. Mr. Smith has been a partner at Bacon & Wilson, P.C., one of the largest regional law firms in western Massachusetts, specializing in Real Estate, Business Law and Estate Planning, since 2001. Mr. Smith has served as a past board member of the Westfield Chamber of Commerce in Westfield, Massachusetts, and of the Westfield State College Foundation. Mr. Smith is a past member of the Westfield Community Development Corporation board of directors. He is a graduate of the University of New Hampshire and received a Juris Doctor from New England School of Law and an LL.M. in taxation from Boston University. Mr. Smith's experience in commercial and residential lending and business law through his many years of legal practice provides him with the qualifications and skills to serve as a director.

INFORMATION ABOUT OUR EXECUTIVE OFFICERS WHO ARE NOT DIRECTORS

The executive officers of the Company, as of March 30, 2022, are as follows. Ages reflected are as of the Annual Meeting date of May 11, 2022.

Allen J. Miles, III, age 59, was appointed to Executive Vice President in December 2008 and serves as Westfield Bank's Senior Lender. Prior to that, Mr. Miles served as Senior Vice President and Senior Lender of the Company and Westfield Bank since August 2005. From 1998 to 2005, Mr. Miles served as Vice President and Commercial Loan Officer.

Kevin C. O'Connor, age 62, was appointed to Executive Vice President and Chief Banking Officer in February 2017. Previously, Mr. O'Connor held the position of Senior Vice President of Retail Banking since February 2015 and served as Vice President since 2010. Mr. O'Connor has over twenty-five years' experience in retail and branch banking and had previously worked at both national and regional banking institutions as a Vice President and regional manager of retail banking and sales, including small business sales.

Guida R. Sajdak, age 49, was appointed to serve as Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer of the Company and Westfield Bank in April 2017 and as an Executive Vice President in October 2016. Mrs. Sajdak previously served as the Chief Risk Officer of the Company and Westfield Bank from October 2016 to April 2017. Previous to October 2016, Mrs. Sajdak served as the Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer of legacy Chicopee Bancorp, Inc. and legacy Chicopee Savings Bank where she held the position since 2010. Mrs. Sajdak served Chicopee Savings Bank in various capacities since 1989 including that of Internal Auditor and Commercial Lender. Mrs. Sajdak also serves on the board of the Chicopee Savings Bank Charitable Foundation and was recently appointed as its Chairperson and President.

John E. Bonini, age 54, joined the Company on August 31, 2020, as a Senior Vice President and Associate General Counsel. Mr. Bonini assumed the position of General Counsel on January 1, 2021, upon the retirement of Mr. Ciejka, who previously held that position. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Bonini was employed at Barings LLC, an international investment management firm owned by MassMutual, where he was a Managing Director and Senior Counsel for Barings Real Estate since 2005. Mr. Bonini has extensive experience in real estate transactions, corporate and investment law matters and corporate governance related issues. He is a graduate of Wesleyan University and received his Juris Doctor from Suffolk University Law School.

Louis O. Gorman, age 62, serves as Senior Vice President of Credit Administration and Chief Credit Officer. Mr. Gorman has served as Chief Credit Officer since 2010 and as Vice President of Credit Administration since 2009. Prior to 2009, Mr. Gorman was a commercial loan officer for the Company and Westfield Bank since 2000 and also performed the same function at other New England-based banking institutions.

Cidalia Inacio, age 66, serves as the Senior Vice President of Retail Banking and also supervises Westfield Bank's investment services division – Westfield Investment Services. Ms. Inacio has been serving in her current position since October 2016. Previously, Ms. Inacio served as the Senior Vice President of Retail Banking for legacy Chicopee Savings Bank where she held the position since March 2010.

Darlene Libiszewski, age 56, serves as Senior Vice President and Chief Information Officer. Ms. Libiszewski has been serving in her current position since October 2016. Previously, Ms. Libiszewski served as the Senior Vice President of Information Technology for legacy Chicopee Savings Bank where she held the position since December 2007.

Christine Phillips, age 49, joined the Company on November 30, 2020, as a Senior Vice President and Human Resources Director. Prior to joining the Company, Ms. Phillips served as the First Vice President of Human Resources for PeoplesBank, headquartered in Massachusetts, since 2014. There she was responsible for overseeing the operations of the Human Resources Department and overall employee engagement. Ms. Phillips brings with her extensive leadership and human resources management including strategic planning, compensation, benefits, talent management and employee training programs. Ms. Phillips received a Master's Degree in Business Administration at the Isenberg School of Management at the University of Massachusetts.

Leo R. Sagan, Jr., age 59, serves as Chief Risk Officer and Senior Vice President of the Company and Westfield Bank since 2017. Previously, Mr. Sagan served as the Chief Financial Officer of the Company and Westfield Bank since December 2008, as Vice President and Controller of the Company and Westfield Bank from 2003 to 2008, as Controller of the Company and Westfield Bank from 2002 to 2003 and as Assistant Treasurer of the Company and Westfield Bank from 1999 to 2002.

Retired Executive Officers

Deborah J. McCarthy retired from the Company on January 28, 2022, and served as Senior Vice President of the Company and Westfield Bank since 2016. Since 2001, she had been the department head of the Deposit Operations Department and Electronic Banking Department. Ms. McCarthy worked for Westfield Bank in numerous capacities since 1979.

In Memoriam

William J. Wagner retired from the Company on November 12, 2021, and passed away in December of 2021. Mr. Wagner had served the Company as its Employee Advisor to the Executive Committee since October 2019. Prior to this position, Mr. Wagner held the position of Senior Vice President and Chief Business Development Officer since October 21, 2016. Mr. Wagner retired from the Company's Board on May 12, 2020, and had served as the Board Vice Chairman since October 2016, following the Company's merger with legacy Chicopee Bancorp, Inc. Prior to the merger, Mr. Wagner served as the President and Chief Executive Officer of legacy Chicopee Savings Bank since 1984 and the President and the Chairman of the Board of legacy Chicopee Bancorp, Inc. since its formation in 2006. Up until his passing, Mr. Wagner served as the founding president of the Chicopee Savings Bank Charitable Foundation, established in 2006 to provide consistent philanthropic support to the communities served by the legacy bank. Mr. Wagner's banking career spanned 58-years, and he was well known and highly respected in the Massachusetts and Connecticut banking industry through his active leadership roles on the boards of many banking, civic and philanthropic organizations.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is dedicated to being a financial industry leader in corporate governance and business ethics. Our Board is composed of directors with diverse professional and business experience. All of our directors, other than Mr. Hagan, are independent. They all share a commitment to fostering an effective risk environment coupled with a strong internal audit structure. Their unwavering commitment protects our clients, shareholders and reputation. Our Code of Ethics for our Senior Financial Officers and our Code of Conduct reflect the Company's expectation for the conduct of our directors, officers and employees. Through recurring training and disclosures, as well as periodic communication related to specific topics, the Company maintains the highest level of ethical conduct. The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee receives annual education related to corporate social responsibility, as well as to trends and best practices for directors.

Board of Directors

The Board oversees our business and monitors the performance of our management team. In accordance with our corporate governance procedures, the Board does not involve itself in our day-to-day operations. Our executive officers and management oversee our day-to-day operations. Our directors fulfill their duties and responsibilities by attending regular meetings of the Board, which are generally held on a monthly basis. Our directors also discuss business and other matters with the Chairperson and the President, other key executives and our principal external advisers (legal counsel, auditors, financial advisors and other consultants).

The Company's Board held six regular meetings during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2021, and the Westfield Bank Board held 11 regular meetings. Each incumbent director attended at least 75% of the total of (i) the meetings of the Board held during the period for which he or she has been a director, and (ii) the meetings of the committee(s) on which that particular director served during such period.

It is our policy that all directors and nominees attend the Annual Meeting. At the 2021 Annual Meeting, 9 of the 10 members then serving on the Board were in attendance. In addition to the Company's regularly scheduled Board of Director meetings, all members of the Board participated in an all-day strategic planning session.

Board of Directors Independence

Rule 5605 of the NASDAQ Marketplace Rules (the "NASDAQ Listing Rules") requires that independent directors compose a majority of a listed company's board of directors. In addition, the NASDAQ Listing Rules require that, subject to specified exceptions, each member of a listed company's Audit, Compensation and Nominating and Corporate Governance Committees be independent and that Audit Committee members also satisfy independence criteria set forth in Rule 10A-3 under the Exchange Act. Under Rule 5605(a)(2) of the NASDAQ Listing Rules, a director will only qualify as an "independent director" if, in the opinion of our Board, that person does not have a relationship that would interfere with the exercise of independent judgment in carrying out the responsibilities of a director. In order to be considered independent for purposes of Rule 10A-3 under the Exchange Act, a member of an Audit Committee of a listed company may not, other than in his or her capacity as a member of the Audit Committee, the board of directors or any other board committee: (i) accept, directly or indirectly, any consulting, advisory or other compensatory fee from the listed company or any of its subsidiaries; or (ii) be an affiliated person of the listed company or any of its subsidiaries. In addition to satisfying general independence requirements under the NASDAQ Listing Rules, members of a Compensation Committee must also satisfy independence requirements set forth in Rule 10C-1 under the Exchange Act and NASDAQ Listing Rule 5605(d)(2). Pursuant to Rule 10C-1 under the Exchange Act and NASDAQ Listing Rule 5605(d)(2), in affirmatively determining the independence of a member of a Compensation Committee of a listed company, the Board of Directors must consider all factors specifically relevant to determining whether that member has a relationship with the Company which is material to that member's ability to be independent from management in connection with the duties of a Compensation Committee member, including: (a) the source of compensation of such member, including any consulting, advisory or other compensatory fee paid by the Company to such member; and (b) whether such member is affiliated with the Company, a subsidiary of the Company or an affiliate of a subsidiary of the Company.

The Board consults with our legal counsel to ensure that their determinations are consistent with relevant securities and other laws and regulations regarding the definition of "independent," including those set forth in pertinent NASDAQ Listing Rules, as in effect from time to time.

Consistent with these considerations, the Board has affirmatively determined that all of its directors, including the director nominees, satisfy general independence requirements under the NASDAQ Listing Rules, other than Mr. Hagan. In making this determination, the Board found that none of the directors, other than Mr. Hagan, had a material or other disqualifying relationship with us that would interfere with the exercise of independent judgment in carrying out the responsibilities of a director, and that each director, other than Mr. Hagan, is "independent" as that term is defined under Rule 5605(a)(2) of the NASDAQ Listing Rules. The Board determined that Mr. Hagan, President and Chief Executive Officer, is not an independent director by virtue of his current employment with the Company. The Board also determined that each member of the Audit, Nominating and Corporate Governance and Compensation Committees satisfies the independence standards for such committees established by the SEC and the NASDAQ Listing Rules, as applicable.

Code of Ethics and Corporate Governance Guidelines

We have adopted a Conflict of Interest Policy and Code of Conduct, which applies to all of our employees and officers. We have also adopted a Code of Ethics for Senior Financial Officers, which applies to our principal executive officer, principal financial officer, principal accounting officer or controller or persons performing similar functions for us in 2021, and which requires compliance with the Conflict of Interest Policy and Code of Conduct. The Code of Ethics for Senior Financial Officers meets the requirements of a "code of ethics" as defined by Item 406 of Regulation S-K.

We intend to satisfy the disclosure requirement under Item 5.05 of Form 8-K regarding an amendment to, or a waiver from, a provision of our Code of Ethics that applies to our principal executive officer, principal financial officer, principal accounting officer, or persons performing similar functions in 2021, by posting such information on our website at the internet address set forth below. We have not amended or granted any waivers of a provision of our Code of Ethics during 2021.

The Board adopted Corporate Governance Guidelines to assure that it will have the necessary authority and practices in place to review and evaluate our business operations as needed and to make decisions that are independent of our management. The Corporate Governance Guidelines are also intended to align the interests of directors and management with those of our shareholders. The Corporate Governance Guidelines set forth the practices the Board intends to follow with respect to Board independence, composition and selection, Board meetings and involvement of senior executives, senior executive performance evaluation and succession planning, and Board committees and compensation.

The Code of Ethics for Senior Financial Officers and our Corporate Governance Guidelines are available to shareholders on our investor relations website at wneb.q4ir.com. The inclusion of our website address here and elsewhere in this Proxy Statement does not include or incorporate by reference the information on our website into this Proxy Statement.

Hedging and Pledging of Company Securities

On an annual basis, all directors, executive management and senior financial officers, as defined therein, are required to review the Company's Insider Trading Policy and are provided with the Company's scheduled blackout periods. The policy details trading guidelines and prohibitions for those directors and officers, subject to Section 16 of the SEC, and serves to educate such directors, executive management and senior financial officers as to their individual and corporate responsibilities as insider shareholders on such matters as trading on material non-public information and short-swing transactions as well as the potential criminal and civil liability and/or disciplinary actions for insider trading and/or tipping of material non-public information. The policy requires Company insiders to obtain pre-clearance prior to commencing any trade of the Company's securities and prohibits hedging, pledging or short-selling of the Company's securities by insiders. The policy further prohibits the exercise of stock options during scheduled blackout periods. A signed Certification of Acknowledgment from all directors, executive management and senior financial officers is collected and retained by the Corporate Secretary.

Committees of the Board of Directors

The following table provides the Board's committee membership, as of the date of this Proxy Statement, and meeting information for the year ended December 31, 2021, for the following committees:

Name	Executive	Audit	Nominating and Corporate Governance	Compensation	Finance & Risk Management
Laura Benoit		✓		✓	
Donna J. Damon			✓	✓	
Gary G. Fitzgerald ⁽¹⁾		Chair		✓	
James C. Hagan	✓				✓
William D. Masse		✓			Chair
Lisa G. McMahon	Chair		Chair	✓	
Gregg F. Orlen			✓	Chair	
Paul C. Picknelly		✓	✓		
Steven G. Richter	✓		✓	✓	
Philip R. Smith	✓				✓
Total Meetings in 2021:	20(2)	5	1	3	4

⁽¹⁾ Financial Expert

⁽²⁾ See Executive Committee below.

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee exercises the powers of the Board between Board meetings and is responsible for reviewing and approving all Westfield Bank extensions of credit above and beyond management's authority. The Executive Committee takes action to review and approve extensions of credit either through meetings, as noted above, or virtually through the Company's online board portal. In addition to meeting twenty times during 2021, the Executive Committee also took action reviewing and approving extensions of credit between scheduled meetings using the Company's secure online board portal. During 2021, the Executive Committee was chaired by Ms. McMahon with Messrs. Hagan, Richter and Smith serving as members.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee is chaired by Mr. Fitzgerald with Ms. Benoit and Messrs. Masse and Picknelly serving as members. The Audit Committee assists the Board by overseeing the audit coverage and monitoring the accounting, financial reporting, data processing, regulatory and internal control environments. The primary duties and responsibilities of the Audit Committee are to:

- oversee and monitor the financial reporting process and internal controls system;
- review and evaluate the audit performed by outside auditors and report any substantive issues found during the audit to the Board;
- appoint, compensate and oversee the work of the independent auditors;
- review and approve all transactions with affiliated parties; and
- provide an open avenue of communication among the independent auditors, financial and senior management, the internal audit department and the Board.

The Board reviews the NASDAQ Listing Rules' definition of independence for Audit Committee members on an annual basis and has determined that all members of our Audit Committee are independent (as independence is currently defined in Rule 5605(a)(2) of the NASDAQ Listing Rules and Rule 10A-3 under the Exchange Act). The Board has also determined that Mr. Fitzgerald qualifies as an "audit committee financial expert" as such term is currently defined in Item 407(d)(5) of Regulation S-K. The Board has adopted a written charter for the Audit Committee that is available to shareholders on our investor relations website at wneb.q4ir.com.

Pre-approval of Services

The Audit Committee shall pre-approve all auditing services and permitted non-audit services (including the fees and terms) to be performed for us by our independent registered public accounting firm, subject to the *de minimis* exception for non-audit services described below, which are approved by the Audit Committee prior to completion of the audit. The pre-approval requirement set forth above shall not be applicable with respect to non-audit services if:

- the aggregate amount of all such services provided constitutes no more than 5% of the total amount of revenues paid by us to our auditor during the fiscal year in which the services are provided;
- such services were not recognized by us at the time of the engagement to be non-audit services; and
- such services are promptly brought to the attention of the Audit Committee and approved prior to the completion of the audit by the Audit Committee or by one or more members of the Audit Committee who are members of the Board to whom authority to grant such approvals has been delegated by the Audit Committee.

Delegation

The Audit Committee may delegate to one or more designated members of the Audit Committee the authority to grant required preapprovals. The decisions of any member to whom authority is delegated under this paragraph to pre-approve activities under this subsection shall be presented to the full Audit Committee at its next scheduled meeting.

The Audit Committee pre-approved 100% of the services performed by the independent registered public accounting firm for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2021, pursuant to the policies outlined above.

Audit Committee Report(1)

The Audit Committee has reviewed and discussed our audited financial statements for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2021, with management and our independent registered public accounting firm, Wolf & Company. The Audit Committee has discussed with Wolf & Company the matters required to be discussed by Public Company Accounting Oversight Board, or PCAOB, Auditing Standard No. 1301, Communications with Audit Committees. The Audit Committee has also received the written disclosures and the letter from Wolf & Company required by applicable requirements of the PCAOB regarding Wolf & Company's communications with the Audit Committee concerning independence, and has discussed with Wolf & Company the firm's independence. Based on the foregoing, the Audit Committee recommended to the Board that our audited financial statements be included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2021, for filing with the SEC.

Western New England Bancorp, Inc. Audit Committee

Gary G. Fitzgerald, Chair Laura Benoit William D. Masse Paul C. Picknelly

Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee

The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee is chaired by Ms. McMahon with Ms. Damon and Messrs. Orlen, Picknelly and Richter serving as members. Each member of the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee is a non-employee director within the meaning of Rule 16b-3 under the Exchange Act, and each is an independent director under the corporate governance standards of the NASDAQ Listing Rules. The Board has adopted a written charter for the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee that is available to shareholders on our investor relations website at wneb.q4ir.com. Pursuant to its charter, the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee is responsible for:

- identifying, reviewing and evaluating candidates to serve as directors (consistent with criteria approved by the Board);
- reviewing director nominations by shareholders;
- reviewing and evaluating incumbent directors:
- recommending to the Board, for selection, candidates for election to the Board;
- making recommendations to the Board regarding the membership of the committees of the Board;
- reviewing the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee Charter and developing and implementing corporate governance guidelines;
- overseeing the Board's annual self-evaluation of the Board's performance; and
- annually reviewing and assessing the Company's succession plans for the Chief Executive Officer and other key officers and senior executives of the Company.

It is the policy of the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee to select individuals as director nominees who shall have the highest personal and professional integrity, who shall have demonstrated exceptional ability and judgment and who shall be most effective, in conjunction with the other nominees to the Board, in collectively serving the long-term interests of the shareholders. When considering candidates for the Board, the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee takes into consideration the relevance of the candidate's experience to the business of the Company, the candidate's ability to enhance the talent and diversity of the Board, the candidate's independence from conflict or direct economic relationship with the Company and the ability of the candidate to attend Board meetings regularly and devote the appropriate amount of effort in preparation for such meetings. Candidates shall possess a reputation and hold positions or affiliations benefitting a director of a publicly held company and shall be actively engaged in occupations or professions or are otherwise regularly involved in the business, professional or academic community.

Shareholder nominees, if any, would be analyzed by the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee in the same manner as nominees that are identified by the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee. If the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee believes a candidate would be a valuable addition to the Board, it will recommend to the full Board that candidate's election. The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee also has the authority to retain any search firm to assist in the identification of director candidates. However, the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee has not retained any such search firm, and we do not pay a fee to any third party to identify or evaluate director candidates or nominees.

The material in this report is not "soliciting material," is not deemed "filed" with the SEC and is not to be incorporated by reference in any filing we make under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Securities Act"), or the Exchange Act, whether made before or after the date hereof and irrespective of any general incorporation language in any such filing.

In accordance with our Bylaws, nominations of individuals for election to the Board at an Annual Meeting of shareholders may be made by any shareholder of record entitled to vote for the election of directors at such meeting who provides timely notice in writing to our Secretary at our principal executive office. To be timely, a shareholder's notice must be delivered to or received by our Secretary not less than 120 calendar days in advance of the anniversary date of our Proxy Statement released to shareholders in connection with the previous year's Annual Meeting of shareholders. Submissions must include the full name of the proposed nominee and include a detailed background of the suggested candidate, and a representation that the nominating shareholder is a beneficial or record holder of our common stock. If a nomination is not properly brought before the Annual Meeting in accordance with our Bylaws, the Chairperson of the Annual Meeting may determine that the nomination was not properly brought before the Annual Meeting and shall not be considered. For additional information about our director nomination requirements, please see our Bylaws.

All nominees were nominated by the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee. As of the date of this Proxy Statement, the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee had not received any shareholder recommendations for nominees in accordance with our Bylaws in connection with the Annual Meeting.

Compensation Committee

The Compensation Committee is chaired by Mr. Orlen with Mses. Damon, Benoit and McMahon and Messrs. Fitzgerald and Richter serving as members. Each member of the Compensation Committee is a non-employee director within the meaning of Rule 16b-3 under the Exchange Act, each is an outside director as defined by Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code"), and each is an independent director under the corporate governance standards of the NASDAQ Listing Rules and the independence requirements of Rule 10C-1 under the Exchange Act. As required by its charter, the Compensation Committee meets at least three times annually and with greater frequency, if necessary. The Board has adopted a written charter for the Compensation Committee that is available to shareholders on our investor relations website at wneb.q4ir.com. Pursuant to its charter, the Compensation Committee's responsibilities include:

- evaluating the performance of the Chief Executive Officer and other elected officers in light of approved performance and objectives;
- making recommendations to the Board for, and setting the compensation of the Chief Executive Officer and other elected officers, based upon the evaluation of the performance of the Chief Executive Officer and the other elected officers, respectively; and
- making recommendations to the Board with respect to profit sharing and equity-based compensation plans.

The Compensation Committee also reviews and discusses with management the "Compensation Discussion and Analysis" section of our Proxy Statements and considers whether to recommend to the full Board that it be included in our Proxy Statement and other filings.

Compensation Decision-Making and Policy-Making

Our Bylaws require that our business and affairs be under the direction of the Board, which includes executive officer compensation. Executive compensation is set by the Board after recommendation of the Compensation Committee. As a company listed on NASDAQ, we must observe governance standards and listing requirements that require executive officer compensation decisions to be made by a majority of independent directors of our Board, by a committee of independent directors or, in exceptional and limited circumstances, a compensation committee comprised of at least three members where only one member is not independent.

The Compensation Committee has been delegated authority from our Board to oversee executive compensation by approving salary increases for Senior Vice Presidents and above by reviewing general personnel matters, such as staff performance evaluations, for such Senior Vice Presidents and above. The Compensation Committee has established a compensation program and has a formal charter, which was adopted in December of 2006 and amended in 2007, 2013, 2017 and in February of 2022, and advises senior management on the average salary increases for all employees under the compensation program. The compensation program consists of three components: (1) base salary; (2) annual bonuses (short-term incentives); and (3) long-term incentives (e.g., omnibus equity grants, employment and change-in-control agreements, deferred compensation, retirement and fringe benefits).

The Compensation Committee considers the expectations of the Chief Executive Officer with respect to his own compensation and his recommendations with respect to the compensation of junior executive officers, as well as empirical data and the recommendations of advisors both internal and external. Compensation decisions made by the Compensation Committee are reported by the Compensation Committee's Chairperson to the Board, which approves, disapproves or amends the Compensation Committee's action. The Compensation Committee does not delegate its duties to others. The Compensation Committee also confirms and approves the Summary Compensation Tables included in this Proxy Statement in accordance with the rules and regulations of the SEC.

In addition, pursuant to its charter, the Compensation Committee has the sole authority to retain compensation consultants to assist in its evaluation of executive and director compensation, including the authority to approve the consultant's reasonable fees and other retention terms.

Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation

None of the members of our Compensation Committee has ever been an officer or employee of ours. None of our executive officers served as a member of another entity's board of directors or as a member of another entity's compensation committee (or other board committee performing equivalent functions) during 2021, which entity had an executive officer serving on our Board or as a member of our Compensation Committee. There are no interlocking relationships between us and other entities that might affect the determination of the compensation of our executive officers.

Compensation Committee Report

The Compensation Committee has reviewed and discussed the following "Compensation Discussion and Analysis" with management. Based upon such review, the related discussions and such other matters deemed relevant and appropriate by the Compensation Committee, the Compensation Committee has recommended to the Board that the "Compensation Discussion and Analysis" be included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2021, and this Proxy Statement.

Western New England Bancorp, Inc. Compensation Committee

Gregg F. Orlen, Chair Donna J. Damon Laura Benoit Gary G. Fitzgerald Lisa G. McMahon Steven G. Richter

Finance and Risk Management Committee

The Finance and Risk Management Committee is a standing committee of the Board formed in January 2014. During 2021, Mr. Masse served as its chair with Messrs. Hagan and Smith serving as its members. The Finance and Risk Management Committee meets as often as necessary, but at least three times annually.

The Board has adopted a written charter for the Finance and Risk Management Committee that is available to shareholders on our investor relations website at wneb.q4ir.com. Pursuant to its charter, the purpose of the Finance and Risk Management Committee is to assist the Board and the Executive Committee of the Board in fulfilling their responsibility with respect to the oversight of the Company's (1) enterprise risk management and financial framework, including all risks associated therewith, and (2) policies and practices relating to financial matters, including but not limited to, capital, liquidity and financing, as well as to merger, acquisition and divestiture activity. The Finance and Risk Management Committee reports to the Board regarding the Company's risk profile, as well as the overall adequacy of the enterprise risk management function. The Finance and Risk Management Committee also will, as directed by the Executive Committee or the Board, review financial strategic planning, corporate financial statements, projects or initiatives.

Communicating with the Board of Directors

Shareholders may contact the Company's Board of Directors by writing to:

Theresa C. Szlosek, Corporate Secretary Western New England Bancorp, Inc. 141 Elm Street Westfield, Massachusetts, 01085

All communications addressed to this address will be forwarded directly to the Chairperson of the Board of Directors. Any letter addressed to an individual director will be forwarded to that director.

Board Leadership Structure and Role in Risk Oversight

Board Leadership Structure

The Board does not have a formal policy on separating the roles of Chairperson of the Board and Chief Executive Officer and, if separate, whether the Chairperson of the Board should be a non-employee director or an employee. The Board believes that no single, one-size fits all, board leadership model is universally or permanently appropriate. The Board prefers to retain the flexibility to structure its leadership from time to time in any manner that is in the best interests of the Company and its shareholders.

The positions of our Chairperson of the Board and Chief Executive Officer are currently separated. Separating these positions allows our Chief Executive Officer to focus on our day-to-day business, while allowing the Chairperson of the Board to lead our Board in its fundamental role of providing advice to, and independent oversight of, management. The Board recognizes the time, effort and energy that our Chief Executive Officer must devote to his position in the current business environment, as well as the commitment required to serve as our Chairperson, particularly as the Board's oversight responsibilities continue to grow. The Board also believes that this structure ensures a greater role for the independent directors in the oversight of the Company and active participation of the independent directors in setting agendas and establishing priorities and procedures for the work of our Board. The Board recognizes that depending on the circumstances, other leadership models, such as combining the role of Chairperson of the Board with the role of Chief Executive Officer, might be appropriate. Accordingly, the Board may periodically review its leadership structure.

Board's Role in Risk Oversight

The Board is responsible for consideration and oversight of risk management and is responsible for ensuring that material risks are identified and managed appropriately. The Board believes an effective risk management system will (1) timely identify the material risks that the Company faces; (2) communicate necessary information on material risks to senior management and, as appropriate, to the Board or relevant Board committee; (3) implement responsive risk management strategies appropriate to the Company's risk profile; and (4) integrate risk management into the Company's decision making.

The Board's role in the Company's risk oversight process includes receiving regular reports from members of senior management on areas of material risk to the Company, including operational, financial, legal, regulatory, technology, cybersecurity, strategic and reputational risks. The Board receives these reports to enable it to understand the Company's risk identification, risk management and risk mitigation strategies. While the Board has the ultimate oversight responsibility for the risk management process, various committees of both management and the Board also have responsibility for risk management. The Board has established a Finance and Risk Management Committee of the Board to assist in fulfilling this responsibility. The Board and the Finance and Risk Management Committee approve the Bank's business strategies and, in so doing, ultimately approve the level of risks the Bank takes. Senior management is responsible for implementing the Board's strategies in such a way as to limit the associated risks the Bank takes and for ensuring that the staff complies with applicable laws and regulations.

To further assist the Board and the Finance and Risk Management Committee in carrying out its responsibility, the Chief Risk Officer serves as the primary risk management officer for establishing policy and designing and implementing the overall Enterprise Risk Management framework. While business unit managers are primarily responsible for managing risk inherent in their areas of responsibility, the objective of the Chief Risk Officer is to promote risk management practices throughout the organization that are well defined, repeatable and allow a comprehensive understanding of the Company's risk profile.

Our Chief Risk Officer provides reports and updates to the Finance and Risk Management Committee on risk management initiatives. The chair of the Finance and Risk Management Committee reports to the full Board with respect to any notable risk management issues and coordinates with other Board and management-level committees as necessary. The Board also meets regularly in executive session without management to discuss a variety of topics, including risk. In these ways, the full Board is able to monitor our risk profile and risk management activities on an on-going basis.

The Audit Committee provides quarterly updates to the Board relating to our internal and external audit functions. The Board reviews all reports of examination by regulatory agencies, including the Bank's primary regulator, the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency. All policies and procedures affecting the risk factors listed above are reviewed and approved by the Board on a monthly, quarterly and annual basis, as the case may be.

We believe that through our current reporting structure, the Board maintains strong and effective oversight of all risk factors affecting us. This oversight is maintained through active involvement by all members of the Board on various committees, with elected chairpersons for each such committee, which ensures that diverse leadership exists throughout the Board and prevents centralization of control within one, or a group of individuals. Oversight is also maintained through the Executive Committee, which, pursuant to our Bylaws, has the ability to exercise the powers of the Board between Board meetings, and through the Board's monthly meetings. Recommendations of the Board at these meetings are then implemented by senior management and the results are subsequently reported to the Board.

Environmental, Social and Governance Highlights

The Company is committed to strengthening the communities we serve through volunteerism and corporate philanthropy, as well as environmental responsibility, serving as a cornerstone of the local community, and maintaining transparency and diversity in governance. We strive to have positive impacts on the communities in which we live and work by focusing on certain core initiatives, including financial empowerment and education; diversity, equity and inclusion in governance; volunteerism and environmental sustainability. Below are some of our significant initiatives and events of 2021:

We promote economic development and education through investment in community-strengthening initiatives like small business and affordable housing lending programs, as well as no-cost, first-time homebuyer educational seminars open to the public. The following are a few examples:

- First-Time Homebuyer Program: This program provides home loans with special incentives, such as low down payments and closing cost credits, to individuals purchasing a primary residence for the first time. In 2021, the Bank lent over \$12 million under this program;
- Basic Banking for Massachusetts Program: This program is coordinated by the Massachusetts Community & Banking Council
 and recognizes Massachusetts banks that expand access to low-cost bank products and services. In 2021, the Company was
 recognized in both the checking and savings categories;
- Second Chance Checking Program: Through this program, we work with individuals to help rehabilitate their past bank deposit account charge-off record, which provides them with the opportunity to access mainstream financial services. After twelve (12) months of satisfactory performance, accounts are automatically converted to standard products;
- Ready, Set, Grow Program: This proprietary program encourages youth savings and is available through participating schools and all branch locations; and
- Financial Literacy: We promote financial literacy through a number of educational programs, including:
 - Our First-Time Homebuyer seminars, which help promote the joy and responsibility of homeownership;
 - Our educational partnerships with community centers and local schools with Bank personnel providing instruction about personal finance and banking.

The Company has received an "Outstanding" rating in each of its last three Community Reinvestment Act examinations performed by the Office of the Comptroller of Currency. These examinations assess our responsiveness to the financial needs of the communities we serve, with a special emphasis on meeting the needs of low-to-moderate income consumers and small businesses. Throughout our footprint, we have facilitated more than 67 community development loans totaling in excess of \$153 million during 2021 and have partnered with numerous local and state-based small business development agencies to foster successful business relationships.

We support environmental awareness and sustainability by encouraging and empowering recycling, responsible waste management practices and energy conservation throughout the organization. The following are a few examples:

- We continue to utilize recycled paper, stationery products and janitorial supplies, and partner with a local information destruction vendor for bulk shredding services that ensures all paper waste is recycled back into the marketplace;
- We have further reduced the amount of paper and other waste we create by expanding electronic storage of documents, continuing to upgrade our ATMs to image-only machines and eliminating the use of paper envelopes, replacing customer mailings with statement messages and email options, allowing electronic delivery and signing of documents by customers, emphasizing client use of monthly electronic statements and by making our Board and Board committee meetings paperless;
- We typically host several community shredding events throughout the year at branch locations. During 2021, as a result of
 the COVID-19 pandemic and continuing social distancing guidance, we were forced to limit the number of community shred
 events to two events held throughout the year;
- We have continued our initiative to reduce consumption of electricity through the installation and use of motion-activated lighting in our offices and the replacing of interior and exterior lighting to LED sourced bulbs throughout our organization;
- We continue to make environmentally conscious renovations in our buildings and initiated the installation of energy efficient HVAC equipment in one of our larger branches in 2021. In addition, all new buildings, inclusive of our newly-constructed Granby, Connecticut, branch, are designed and built to be energy efficient;
- We collaborate with a local electronic recycling company and recycled more than 1,400 pounds of LED lighting, computer and mixed electronic equipment in 2021; and
- We indirectly reduced automobile emissions impacting our environment by continuing to utilize remote and virtual meetings and trainings for numerous departments throughout the organization.

The Company continually evaluates opportunities to reduce energy dependence in areas such as facilities, equipment, operations, shipping and business travel, and remains cognizant of our impact on the environment.

Philanthropy

Philanthropy has always been one of our Company's core values as we continually focus on strengthening the communities we serve through our support of economic development and charitable organizations. We accomplish this through a culture of employee volunteerism, corporate sponsorships and grants, non-profit board service by employees, and organized employee fundraising donations for non-profit groups and associations in our communities. The following are some examples of these philanthropic activities:

- In 2021, the Company donated in excess of \$550,000 in grants and sponsorships to hundreds of non-profit organizations as well as to economic development groups located within our footprint. As of December 31, 2021, the Company had \$265,000 in outstanding multi-year pledged commitments.
- We promote volunteerism in our communities by providing paid-time-off to our employees for performing volunteer work and we formally partner with, and source volunteers for, numerous community groups and non-profits. Despite continuing state and federal distancing mandates and the reduction of volunteer opportunities within our communities resulting from the COVID-19 pandemic, our employees volunteered more than 3,000 hours across more than 100 organizations in 2021.

Diversity, Equity and Inclusion

The Company and the Board strongly believe diversity is critical to the Company's success and creating long-term value for our shareholders. The Board and Executive Management have adopted diversity, equity and inclusion as a key focus of the Company's overall strategic plan.

During 2020, we were proud to announce the first female Chairperson in the Company's 169-year history. With respect to the Board, it is acknowledged that a Board consisting of individuals with diverse backgrounds ensures broader representation and inspires deeper commitment to management, employees and the communities we serve. While not specific to a particular policy, the Board prioritizes diversity in gender, ethnic background and professional experience when considering candidates for director as part of its commitment to diversity. At present, 30% of our Board is diverse from a gender, race or ethnic perspective. For additional information regarding the composition and diversity of our current Board, see "Information About Our Board Of Directors" on page 6.

In addition, the Company is committed to a culture of inclusiveness, equality and diversity at all levels of the organization's workforce. The Company aims to maintain a workplace that presents a respectful, productive environment for everyone and enables individuals to achieve their full potential. Engaging a diverse workforce is sought by creating a culture of inclusion where similarities, differences, complexities and constructive dialogue are valued. As of December 31, 2021, 45% of our senior management team were diverse from a gender, race or ethnic perspective. Our workforce is also representative of our commitment to recruit, develop, and retain diverse individuals wherein 21% of our employees are either ethnic minorities, veterans or persons with disabilities. We remain focused on bolstering our workforce through inclusive hiring and retention practices, which we feel reflects and better serves our communities. The Company respects, values and invites diversity in our Board, workforce, customers, suppliers, marketplace and community. Our Board is considerably diversified by ISS and NASDAQ gender diversity standards, and we actively seek to recruit diversified candidates throughout our communities.

Shareholder Engagement

The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee, together with the Board of Directors, value open dialogue and discourse with our shareholders. We believe that engaging and receiving feedback from our shareholders enhances our oversight of best governance practices and provides the Committee and the Board of Directors with valuable tools to ensure the best interest of all shareholders.

In the fall of 2021, we solicited our top 20 institutional investors to engage with various members of senior management regarding our governance practices, compensation disclosures and equity and diversity plans. One shareholder accepted our invitation and we engaged on a multitude of topics. We believe the low response to our engagement efforts reflects the general satisfaction shareholders have with the effectiveness of our compensation and governance practices. The shareholder engagement yielded helpful insight as to how shareholders view our practices and what they value most as investors. The feedback we received about our governance practices, disclosures and our equity practices was overwhelmingly positive and is highlighted below, along with our response measures.

- Shareholder commended our Board refreshment and overall makeup and suggested increased director competency and skills disclosure. We have acted on the suggestion by including a revised and more comprehensive matrix within this proxy statement, see "Information About Our Board Of Directors" on page 6.
- Shareholder noted its preference to see the same level of disclosures for all entities, regardless of size and reporting status. We continue to increase and enhance our level of disclosure, despite qualifying as a smaller reporting company, in an effort to provide more transparency to our shareholders.
- Shareholder noted our diversity and inclusion efforts at both the Board and senior management level and inquired as to any
 formal metrics. We reiterated our continuing commitment to considering diversity in evaluating potential Board candidates that
 is part of the criteria set forth in our Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee charter. We have also committed to
 seeking out diverse candidates for our management team and in our hiring practices.

COMPENSATION DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In this section, "Committee" and the "Compensation Committee" are used interchangeably to refer to the Compensation Committee. This Compensation Discussion and Analysis describes and explains the material elements of the 2021 compensation for our Chief Executive Officer, our Chief Finance Officer and our Chief Lending Officer. The detailed information regarding the compensation of these executive officers, also called "Named Executive Officers" or "NEOs," is set forth in the tables following this Compensation Discussion and Analysis. We also provide an overview of our executive compensation philosophy and our executive compensation program.

The following individuals are our NEOs for 2021:

- James C. Hagan, President and Chief Executive Officer;
- Allen J. Miles, III, Executive Vice President and Chief Lending Officer; and
- Guida R. Sajdak, Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer.

Executive Summary

Over the last two years, the COVID-19 pandemic has impacted all our lives. Despite these disruptions, WNEB's mission—to support our customers and community and give our employees the tools to succeed, while enhancing franchise value—remains unwavering. The last two years has forced us to consider new ways to support our employees and customers while executing our long-term strategy.

Our strategic priorities for the coming year are similar to our prior strategic initiatives—continue to service our existing markets and build our base in our new Connecticut markets. Our goal is to continue to provide exceptional service to our retail and commercial customers that is unmatched by our peers.

As we move forward into 2022, we are focused on executing our strategies and vision for long-term success. We believe that we are well positioned to continue to support our community and customers while delivering for all our stakeholders again in 2022.

Company Performance

For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2021:

- For the twelve months ended December 31, 2021, the Company reported net income of \$23.7 million, or \$1.02 per diluted share, compared to \$11.2 million, or \$0.45 per diluted share, for the twelve months ended December 31, 2020. For the twelve months ended December 31, 2021, income before provision for loan losses and taxes increased \$8.9 million, or 40.6%, from the twelve months ended December 31, 2020. Return on average assets and return on average equity were 0.96% and 10.64% for the twelve months ended December 31, 2021, respectively, compared to 0.48% and 4.86% for the twelve months ended December 31, 2020, respectively.
- At December 31, 2021, total assets were \$2.5 billion, an increase of \$172.5 million, or 7.3%, from December 31, 2020. During the twelve months ended December 31, 2021, cash and cash equivalents increased \$16.0 million, or 18.3%, to \$103.5 million, investment securities increased \$214.7 million, or 100.4%, to \$428.5 million and total loans, excluding SBA Paycheck Protection Program ("PPP") loans, increased \$79.3 million, or 4.5%, to \$1.8 billion. The high level of cash and cash equivalents is due to an increase in core deposits as well as PPP loan payoffs.
- The Company maintained its focus on credit quality. Nonperforming assets to total assets, was 0.20% at December 31, 2021, compared to 0.33% at December 31, 2020. The allowance for loan losses as a percentage of total loans, was 1.06% at December 31, 2021, compared to 1.10% at December 31, 2020. At December 31, 2021, the allowance for loan losses as a percentage of nonperforming loans was 398.6%, compared to 269.8% at December 31, 2020.
- At December 31, 2021, total deposits were \$2.3 billion, an increase of \$213.2 million, or 10.5%, from December 31, 2020, primarily due to an increase in core deposits of \$401.5 million, or 27.7%. Core deposits, which the Company defines as all deposits except time deposits, increased from \$1.4 billion, or 71.0% of total deposits, at December 31, 2020, to \$1.8 billion, or 82.1% of total deposits, at December 31, 2021.
- The Company's book value per share was \$9.87 at December 31, 2021, compared to \$8.97 at December 31, 2020, while tangible book value per share increased \$0.85, or 10.2%, from \$8.36 at December 31, 2020, to \$9.21 at December 31, 2021. As of December 31, 2021, the Company's and the Bank's regulatory capital ratios continued to exceed the levels required to be considered "well-capitalized" under federal banking regulations.
- On April 27, 2021, the Company announced that the Board of Directors authorized a stock repurchase plan under which the Company is authorized to repurchase up to 2.4 million shares, or 10% of its outstanding common stock. In 2020 and 2021, the Company repurchased approximately 1.4 million and 2.8 million shares, respectively.

Advisory Vote on NEO Compensation

At our Annual Meeting of shareholders held on May 11, 2021, we held an advisory vote on executive compensation. Although the vote was non-binding, the Committee has considered and will continue to consider the outcome of the vote when determining compensation policies and setting NEO compensation. Approximately 95% of the shares of our common stock that were voted on the proposal were voted for the approval of the compensation of the NEOs, as disclosed in our 2021 Proxy Statement. Further, approximately 96% of the shares of our common stock that were voted on the proposal for the Company's 2021 Omnibus Incentive Plan were voted in favor of the 2021 Omnibus Incentive Plan.

The Committee will continue to consider the outcome of our say-on-pay proposal, regulatory changes and emerging best practices when making future recommendations regarding compensation for our executives.

Best Practices in Executive Compensation

The Company employs a number of practices that reflect our commitment to good compensation governance practices.

WHAT WE DO	WHAT WE DON'T DO
✓ Use an independent compensation consultant to advise on executive compensation matters	× Do not have compensation programs that encourage unnecessary and excessive risk taking
\checkmark	× No income tax or excise tax gross-ups in our Change-in-Control
Design compensation programs to drive long-term performance	programs
✓ Incorporate an overriding performance condition in our performance metrics	× No repricing stock options without shareholder approval and no backdating stock options
✓ Consider peer group data when making executive compensation decisions	× Do not permit hedging, pledging or short-selling of the Company's stock by executive officers
✓ Set multi-year vesting periods for equity awards.	× No reload or "evergreen" share replenishment features
✓ Stock ownership guidelines	× Do not provide guaranteed bonuses to our named executive officers
✓ Have a recoupment policy	× Do not provide excessive severance arrangements
✓ Maintain an independent Compensation Committee	
✓ Provide the NEO's compensation opportunity in the form of incentive awards, aligning compensation with the Company's performance	
✓ Conduct an annual Say-on-Pay advisory vote and evaluate voting results	

Our Decision Making Process

Role of the Committee

The Committee of the Board is responsible for discharging the Board's duties in executive compensation matters and for administering the Company's incentive and equity-based plans. The Committee oversees the development and implementation of the total compensation program for our NEOs.

The Committee has the responsibility for establishing, implementing and continually monitoring adherence with our executive compensation philosophy. The Committee ensures that the total compensation paid to executives is fair, reasonable and performance-based while aligning with shareholder interests.

Details on the Committee's functions are more fully described in its charter, which has been approved by the Board and is available on our website. To fulfill its charter and responsibilities, the Committee met throughout the year, meeting three times in 2021, and also may take action by written consent. The Chair of the Committee regularly reports on Committee actions at meetings of the Company's Board, which actions are reviewed and approved by the Board.

The Committee reviews all compensation components for the Company's Chief Executive Officer and other executive officers, including base salary, annual incentive awards, long-term incentives/equity awards, benefits and other perquisites. In addition to reviewing competitive market values, the Committee examines the total compensation mix, pay-for-performance relationship, and how all elements, in aggregate, comprise the executive's total compensation package. The Committee also reviews the employment contracts entered into with the Chief Executive Officer, the Chief Financial Officer and the Chief Lending Officer, as well as the Change in Control Agreements or any severance or employment agreements with other senior officers. The Committee and management closely review any accounting and tax (individual and corporate) consequences of the compensation plans prior to making changes to the plans.

The Committee reviews the Chief Executive Officer's performance annually and makes decisions regarding the Chief Executive Officer's compensation, including base salary, incentives and equity grants based on this review. Input and data from management and outside consultants and advisors are provided as a matter of practice and as requested by the Committee to provide external reference and perspective. While the Chief Executive Officer makes recommendations on other NEOs, the Committee is ultimately responsible for approving compensation for all NEOs. The Committee reviews its decisions with the full Board and obtains its approval on all actions.

The Committee has the sole authority and resources to obtain advice and assistance from internal or external legal, human resource, accounting or other advisors or consultants as it deems desirable or appropriate. The Committee has direct access to outside advisors and consultants throughout the year as they relate to executive compensation. The Committee has direct access to, and meets periodically with, the compensation consultant independently of management, and ultimately the Board is responsible for all compensation decisions, upon the recommendation of the Compensation Committee.

Role of the Compensation Consultant

In 2021, the Compensation Committee engaged the consulting services of Pearl Meyer & Partners, LLC ("Pearl Meyer") to provide independent advice and counsel related to executive and Board compensation. The Compensation Committee has also used the services of several law firms to ensure compensation plans and programs are properly administered, documented and meet legal and regulatory requirements.

The Compensation Committee considered the independence of Pearl Meyer and its outside legal advisors in light of SEC and NASDAQ rules for compensation committees and compensation consultants, legal counsel and other advisers.

Role of Management

The Company's management provides information and input as requested by the Compensation Committee to facilitate decisions related to executive compensation. Members of management may be asked to provide input relating to potential changes in compensation programs for review by the Compensation Committee. The Compensation Committee occasionally requests members of management to be present at meetings where executive compensation and Company or individual performances are discussed and evaluated. Executives are free to provide insight, suggestions or recommendations regarding executive compensation. However, only Compensation Committee members are allowed to vote on decisions regarding executive compensation.

In 2021, Christine Phillips, the Company's Senior Vice President and Director of Human Resources, served as management's liaison to the Compensation Committee. Mrs. Phillips assisted in the administration of executive compensation programs, prepared Compensation Committee and Board meeting materials, worked with consultants and legal counsel engaged by the Compensation Committee and performed work as requested, including the preparation of peer analyses, based on a peer group selected by the Compensation Committee. Guida R. Sajdak, the Company's Chief Financial Officer, provided the Compensation Committee with periodic updates of the Company's financial performance measures under the short- and long-term incentive compensation programs. James C. Hagan, the Company's Chief Executive Officer and President, made recommendations with respect to base salary, annual incentive awards and equity compensation for executive officers who report to him. Mr. Hagan was not present at any Compensation Committee meetings in which his own compensation was discussed or voted upon.

Although executives may provide insight, suggestions or recommendations regarding executive compensation, they are not present during the Compensation Committee's deliberations or vote. Only Compensation Committee members vote on decisions regarding executive compensation. The Compensation Committee periodically meets in executive session without management present.

Compensation Philosophy

Our compensation philosophy is to provide competitive compensation that rewards executives for performance and management of risk. The Company's executive compensation program is reviewed on an annual basis to ensure the program remains in alignment with the Company's compensation philosophy and business objectives. The Compensation Committee continues to subscribe to the philosophy that the most effective compensation program is one that is designed to attract and retain qualified and experienced officers and at the same time, is reasonable, competitive and aligned with the Company's pay for performance philosophy.

The Compensation Committee believes that an effective program is one component of the overall management of the Company and that it helps to support and promote a culture that recognizes and rewards the individuals, behaviors and results that the Company and shareholders value. The Company's compensation philosophy is one that recognizes the importance of individual achievements and strives to reward these behaviors while also emphasizing overall corporate achievement while being fair and competitive.

Compensation Components

In support of our executive compensation philosophy and objectives, our executive compensation program consists of the following three key components:

- Base salaries;
- Short-term annual incentive awards; and
- Long-term equity incentive compensation.

We also provide modest levels of perquisites, described later, to our Named Executive Officers and participation in other benefit programs that are generally available to the Company's broader workforce (e.g., health care, disability, life insurance and a defined contribution plan). See "Summary Compensation Table" on page 31 for additional information on these perquisites and benefits.

The Committee maintains a flexible policy for the allocation of compensation components. Allocations of compensation among the various components are intended to align compensation with achievement of short- and long-term performance goals and appropriate risk management while remaining competitive in comparison to the Company's peer group.

Base Salaries

Base salaries recognize and compensate for competencies, experience and knowledge that we believe our Named Executive Officers must possess. The Committee also considers external market data to assess the competitiveness of our base salary levels.

In early 2021, performance evaluations of the executive officers were completed with respect to their 2020 performance. The Committee approved base salary increases for all executive officers, which were derived from the evaluation of their individual performance.

In 2021, the Committee ar	proved increases in base s	alaries for the Company'	s Named Executive	Officers as follows:

		2020 Base Salary	2021 Base Salary	Increase
Name	Title	(\$)	(\$)	(%)
James C. Hagan	President and Chief Executive Officer	545,084	588,691	8.0
	Executive Vice President and Chief Lending			
Allen J. Miles, III	Officer	300,771	315,810	5.0
	Executive Vice President and Chief Financial			
Guida R. Sajdak	Officer	266,161	281,934	5.9

2021 Short-Term Incentive Plan

The Company's short-term incentive compensation program (the "STI Plan") is designed to align executives' interests with the Company's strategic plan and critical annual performance goals by providing meaningful "pay-at-risk" that is earned each year based on performance results. It also seeks to motivate and reward achievement of specific Company and individual performance goals with competitive compensation when performance goals are achieved and above or below median pay when performance results are above or below goals.

The Compensation Committee sets and approves award targets as a percentage of base salary. The incentive pool funding ranges from 0% - 150% of target based on actual performance. The maximum award for any participant, in consideration of corporate and individual performance, is capped at 150% of target.

Each year, in the first quarter, the Compensation Committee sets specific incentive metrics and goals that align with the Company's strategic plan. In 2021, the incentive metrics were approved by the Compensation Committee on February 18, 2021. The Compensation Committee sets threshold and stretch goals for each incentive metric. Target goals (in other words, the Company's budget) are expected to have some stretch and not be "guaranteed." Threshold performance goals and awards are intended to reward solid performance but at reduced payout levels. Stretch performances are expected to represent strong performance that is unlikely, but possible, if the Company exceeds its goals.

The Compensation Committee approves the corporate scorecard as well as the NEO goals. The Compensation Committee can modify the goals at its discretion and approves the final goals at the beginning of each year. Once the scorecard results and pool funding are known, individual performance is assessed to determine and allocate the actual awards from the amount that has been funded to the pool. The Compensation Committee determines awards in consideration of individual performance, but with the discretion to consider other factors such as (i) Company performance shortfalls, (ii) regulatory and safety and soundness concerns and/or (iii) risk management considerations.

For 2021, the individual targets were defined as a percentage of salary. The NEO target was 100% and was unchanged from the prior year. Similarly, all NEOs had the same four Company performance goals and weightings. The Committee, working with management and Pearl Meyer, established and approved the Company's 2021 performance metrics within the STI Plan.

Company Performance Component (75% of annual incentive award)

On February 18, 2021, the Compensation Committee established performance goals for the corporate scorecard that determine the pool available for payout of incentive compensation. The Compensation Committee also established a minimum trigger or gate level of performance, which is defined as (i) 70% of budgeted net income and (ii) Westfield Bank receiving satisfactory regulatory ratings from its regulatory examiner.

Once the minimum trigger is achieved, the incentive pool funding is determined based on Company performance compared against four performance goals. In 2021, after reviewing the performance metrics under the STI Plan, the Compensation Committee did not make any changes to the 2021 metrics.

2021 Scorecard Performance Metrics				
Net Interest Margin, on a Tax-Equivalent Basis	20%			
Expense Ratio	20%			
Pre-Tax, Pre-Provision Income				
Non-Performing Loans to Total Loans				
Individual Goals	25%			

The considerations in setting the 2021 corporate targets and evaluating performance are shown below.

Net Interest Margin (NIM), on a Tax-Equivalent Basis

NIM, on a tax-equivalent basis, represents tax-equivalent net interest and dividend income as a percentage of average interest-earning assets. The target NIM, on a tax-equivalent basis, for 2021 was established at 3.23%, which was an increase of 9.5% from the 2020 actual results of 2.95%. Due to the continued low interest rate environment, management developed strategies to manage the balance sheet to offset the impact of the changing interest rate environment and improve the net interest margin towards the peer group metrics. The NIM, on a tax-equivalent basis, was 3.16% and did not meet the target of 3.23%, but exceeded the threshold of 2.75%. Using interpolation, a payout factor of 93% was established for this metric.

Expense Ratio

The expense ratio is defined as expenses over average assets. Due to the branch strategy to add three new branches in 2020, management was projecting an increase in occupancy expenses as well as salaries and benefits related to additional staff. Management was tasked by the Board to manage expenses during this period of branch expansion. The expense ratio target was established at 2.25% in 2021, compared to actual results from 2020 of 2.21%. The actual performance of 2.22% outperformed target of 2.25%. Management earned 106% of the targeted payout for this measure.

Pre-Tax, Pre-Provision Income (PTPPI)

The Company defined PTPPI as income before provision for loan losses and income tax provision. In order to focus on the earnings of the Company and to remove the uncertainty of the provision for loan losses and income tax provision, the Company measures PTPPI. The target for this metric for 2021 was set at \$23.3 million, compared to the 2020 actual of \$21.9 million. The actual result for 2021 was \$30.8 million, which outperformed the stretch metric of \$28.0 million. Using interpolation, a payout factor of 150% was established for this metric.

Non-Performing Loans to Total Loans (NPL)

The NPL goal measures the level of non-performing loans to total loans. The target for this metric was set at 1.00% for 2021. In addition, the metric was used to mitigate any unintended results of utilizing the PTPPI metric. If the provision, which was excluded from the PTPPI metric, was elevated due to loan growth, this NPL metric would remain at acceptable levels. If the provision was elevated due to asset quality issues in the portfolio, the NPL would negatively exceed the target and reduce the overall payout. The actual result for 2021 was 0.27%, compared to 0.45% in 2020, which represented ongoing strong asset management. Management earned 150% of the targeted payout for this measure.

Individual Performance Component (25% of annual incentive awards)

In addition to the corporate performance component, each 2021 STI award was determined based on individual performance. The individual component for each NEO, with the exception of Mr. Hagan, was assessed by Mr. Hagan based on each NEO's annual performance evaluation and was reviewed and approved by the Compensation Committee. The review of Mr. Hagan's individual component was based on the Compensation Committee's and the full Board's performance evaluation of Mr. Hagan.

Multiple factors were considered in this assessment, including but not limited to:

- Overall corporate performance;
- Progress on key strategic initiatives;
- Regulatory relationships and evaluations;
- The performance of each individual's business line or department; and
- Extraordinary unplanned accomplishments outside of the planned annual goals but which significantly contributed to organizational success and increased shareholder value.

In 2021, the Committee worked with Pearl Meyer to design the 2021 STI Plan framework. The performance goals listed below were approved by the Compensation Committee on February 18, 2021. The Compensation Committee determined that these four corporate performance goals reflect a broad measurement of corporate performance in 2021, including bottom-line profitability, top line revenue objectives and safety and soundness. The assessment of corporate goals was based on the reported financial results of the Company. Financial results are subject to adjustment at the discretion of the Compensation Committee to exclude the impact of one-time extraordinary gains or losses, which may have the effect of either increasing or decreasing calculated payouts under the STI Plan.

The table below outlines the 2021 performance objectives and corporate performance results under the STI Plan:

Goals and Weighting		Performance Goals			Actual	
Company Goals (75%)	Goal Weight	Threshold	Target	Stretch	Actual Performance	% of Target
Net Interest Margin, on a Tax-Equivalent Basis	20%	2.75%	3.23%	3.88%	3.16%	93%
Expense Ratio	20%	2.50%	2.25%	2.00%	2.22%	106%
Pre-Tax, Pre-Provision Income	20%	\$18,640	\$23,300	\$27,960	\$30,799	150%
Non-Performing Loans to Total Loans	15%	1.50%	1.00%	0.50%	0.27%	150%

The table below details the STI Plan opportunities and awards earned and paid for each NEO for 2021:

	Annua	al Incentive A	Award	Annua	l Incentive A	Award	2	2021 Paymen	t
		Opportunity (Percent of Salary)		Opportunity (Dollar Value)		Ear	ned	Actual Payment	
	(10	recire or Sura	,	Threshold	Target	Stretch	Eur	% of	1 uj ment
NEO	Threshold	Target	Stretch	(\$)	(\$)	(\$)	(\$)	Target	(\$)
James C. Hagan	15%	30%	45%	88,304	176,607	264,911	229,133	129.7%	229,133
Allen J. Miles, III	10%	20%	30%	31,581	63,162	94,743	81,947	129.7%	81,947
Guida R. Sajdak	10%	20%	30%	28,193	56,387	84,580	73,157	129.7%	73,157

In 2021, the Company, and the industry as a whole, continued to be challenged by the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic, as well as the continued low interest rate environment. Despite the challenges, the Company was able to support the needs of our borrowers and community as follows:

- In 2020, the Company supported our borrowers and community by participating in the SBA PPP loan program to support local businesses and granted 1,386 PPP loans totaling \$223.1 million. In 2021, the Company granted an additional 760 PPP loans totaling \$79.1 million;
- In 2021, the Company also assisted 1,982 PPP borrowers totaling \$276.9 million through the SBA loan forgiveness process. Total PPP loans decreased \$141.9 million, or 84.9%, from \$167.3 million at December 31, 2020, to \$25.3 million at December 31, 2021.
- Despite the ongoing challenges, at December 31, 2021, the Company's asset quality remained strong, with non-performing loans of \$5.0 million, or 0.27% of total loans excluding PPP loans. Total delinquency as a percentage of total loans, excluding PPP loans, was 0.12%, during the same period.
- The allowance for loan losses as a percentage of total loans, excluding PPP loans, was 1.08%.
- Total core deposits increased \$401.6 million, or 27.7%, and represented 82.1% of total deposits. The loan-to-deposit ratio improved from 94.6% at December 31, 2020, to 82.8% at December 31, 2021. The excess cash from deposits enable us to restructure the balance sheet and protect the net interest margin from the reduction in interest rates. The net interest margin was 3.14% in 2021, compared to 2.93% in 2020. The net interest margin, on a tax-equivalent basis, was 3.16% in 2021, compared to 2.95% in 2020.

The Compensation Committee has the discretion to adjust any payouts to reflect the business environment and market conditions. After reviewing the Company's performance, combined with its evaluation of the individual achievement of the Named Executive Officers, the Compensation Committee authorized individual incentive payments for 2021 at 129.7% of target on January 19, 2022.

Long-Term Incentive Plan

The Company's long-term incentive compensation program (the "LTI Plan") is designed to align senior executives with the long-term interests of the Company and shareholders through stock-based compensation. The LTI Plan also seeks to provide reward for superior multi-year performance and enhance the Company's ability to retain its top performers.

The Compensation Committee sets and approves award targets as a percentage of base salary. The incentive pool funding ranges from 0% - 150% of target based on actual performance. The maximum award for any participant, in consideration of corporate and individual performance, is capped at 150% of target.

The Company's LTI Plan is the third component of each executive officer's total compensation and consists of time-based and performance-based awards and serves to link the net worth of executive officers to the performance of the Company. The LTI Plan provides an incentive to accomplish the strategic, long-term objectives established by the Company to maximize long-term shareholder value and also is designed to be a retention tool for the participants.

Each year, in the first quarter, the Compensation Committee determines, at its discretion, the terms of the LTI Plan, the timing of the awards, the recipients who may be granted awards and the form and the amount of awards. In 2021, the Compensation Committee worked with its compensation consultant, Pearl Meyer, to continue to improve upon the LTI Plan framework with the following objectives:

- Align executives with our shareholders by matching incentives with increases in shareholder value;
- Attract and retain talented executives to drive the Company's success;
- Ensure sound risk management by providing a balanced view of performance and aligning rewards with the time horizon of risk;
- · Position the Company's total compensation to be competitive with the market for meeting performance goals; and
- Motivate and reward long-term sustained performance and avoid excessive risk taking.

The performance shares are tied to performance goals for a three-year performance period. The Company believes that the measure of return on equity ("ROE") is one of the most significant financial measures utilized by shareholders in valuing the Company. In 2019, the Compensation Committee used ROE as the sole measure used for the performance component of the award. In 2020, the Compensation Committee added one additional metric: 3-Year Cumulative Diluted Earnings per Share ("EPS"). The award will be based on the EPS at the end of the three-year performance period. The Compensation Committee believes that these measures are appropriate to evaluate performance over a three-year period. Each of these two measures is independently assigned a 50% weight for determining future performance against goals. The actual number of performance shares that vest will be determined at the end of the three-year period, depending upon the Company's performance against the three-year goals and alignment to shareholder value.

Long-Term Incentive Plan Awards for 2018-2020 Performance Period

Grants were made in January 2018 and awarded as 50% performance shares and 50% time-based restricted stock. The overall long-term incentive compensation for all NEOs remained unchanged from prior years. Mr. Hagan's target was 30% of his base salary and Mr. Miles' and Mrs. Sajdak's target remained at 20% of his/her respective base salary. Grants for the performance period provided for the possibility of awards at a threshold, target and stretch level based on the Company's performance against one financial goal: Return on Equity with 100% weight.

The framework for establishing specific goals for the 2018 long-term incentive grant was similar to previous years. The goals were based on the Company's business strategic plan at the end of 2017. The goals motivated improved performance to align results to shareholders' expectations.

The performance goals and actual outcomes for the period are set forth below:

Performance Goal					
Performance Period	Threshold	Target	Stretch	Actual	
2018	6.30%	6.80%	7.20%	6.82%	
2019	6.85%	7.35%	7.75%	5.79%	
2020	7.40%	7.80%	8.30%	4.86%	

As of December 31, 2020, the three-year performance period for the 2018 LTI Plan ended. Of the 31,841 performance-based shares granted in 2018 eligible to vest, 9,943 performance-based shares vested and were issued to eligible recipients, while 21,898 shares were forfeited in February of 2021. Of the total 9,943 performance-based shares that vested, Mr. Hagan earned 2,180 shares; Mr. Miles earned 847 shares and Mrs. Sajdak earned 706 shares. Shares forfeited became available for reissuance under future grants under the Company's 2014 Omnibus Incentive Plan.

2018 Performance Measure. The actual ROE results for 2018 were 6.82% and management obtained 102.5% of target.

2019 Performance Measure. The actual ROE results for 2019 were 5.79% and management missed the threshold of 6.85%. The 2019 shares in the 2018 LTI Plan were forfeited.

2020 Performance Measure. The actual ROE results for 2020 was 4.86% and management missed the threshold of 7.40%. The 2020 shares in the 2018 LTI Plan were forfeited.

Overall, the incentive operated as designed by paying less when performance targets are not achieved.

Long-Term Incentive Plan Awards for 2019-2021 Performance Period

Grants were made in January 2019 and awarded as 50% performance shares and 50% time-based restricted stock. The overall long-term incentive compensation for all NEOs remained unchanged from prior years. Mr. Hagan's target was 30% of his base salary and Mr. Miles' and Mrs. Sajdak's target remained at 20% of his/her respective base salary. Grants for the performance period provided for the possibility of awards at a threshold, target and stretch level based on the Company's performance against one financial goal: Return on Equity with 100% weight.

The framework for establishing specific goals for the 2019 long-term incentive grant was similar to previous years. The goals were based on the Company's business strategic plan at the end of 2018. The goals motivated improved performance to align results to shareholders' expectations.

The performance goals and actual outcomes for the period are set forth below:

Performance Period	Threshold	Target	Stretch	Actual
2019	5.75%	6.13%	7.00%	5.79%
2020	6.00%	6.75%	7.75%	4.86%
2021	6.25%	7.00%	8.00%	10.64%

As of December 31, 2021, the three-year performance period for the 2019 LTI Plan ended. The 2019 LTI Plan included a "catch-up" provision allowing unearned performance-based shares from the 2019 and 2020 performance periods to be earned at the end of the three-year period based on the final year performance. Of the 40,003 performance-based shares granted in 2019 based on achieving target, 60,009 performance-based shares vested and were issued to eligible recipients based on achieving stretch. Of the total 60,009 performance-based shares that vested, Mr. Hagan earned 11,690 shares; Mr. Miles earned 4,413 shares and Mrs. Sajdak earned 3,906 shares.

Long-Term Incentive Plan Awards for 2020-2022 Performance Period

Grants were made in February 2020 and awarded as 50% performance shares and 50% time-based restricted stock. The overall long-term incentive compensation for all NEOs remained unchanged from prior years. Mr. Hagan's target was 30% of his base salary and Mr. Miles' and Mrs. Sajdak's target remained at 20% of his/her respective base salary. Grants for the performance period provided for the possibility of awards at a threshold, target and stretch level based on the Company's performance against two (2) financial goals: Return on Equity with 50% weight and Three (3) year cumulative earnings per share (EPS) with a 50% weight.

LTI Plan grants with respect to the 2020-2022 performance periods have not yet been earned. For each performance-based goal, achieving threshold performance pays at 50% of target value and achieving stretch performance pays at 150% of target value. To the extent earned at the end of the performance period, performance shares will be paid in the form of immediately vested shares of common stock at the end of the performance period. The goals were based on the Company's business strategic plan at the end of 2019. The goals motivated improved performance to align results to shareholders' expectations.

The performance goals and weighting for the period are set forth below:

Goal	Weight	Threshold	Target	Stretch
Return on Equity				
2020	50%	5.00%	5.48%	6.00%
2021		5.62%	6.24%	6.86%
2022		6.29%	6.99%	7.69%
Three-Year Cumulative EPS	50%	\$1.50	\$1.65	\$1.80

Long-Term Incentive Plan Awards for 2021-2023 Performance Period

Grants were made in May 2021 and awarded as 50% performance shares and 50% time-based restricted stock. The overall long-term incentive compensation for all NEOs remained unchanged from prior years. Mr. Hagan's target was 30% of his base salary, and Mr. Miles' and Mrs. Sajdak's target remained at 20% of his/her respective base salary. Grants for the performance period provided for the possibility of awards at a threshold, target and stretch level, based on the Company's performance against two financial goals: ROE, with 50% weight, and three-year cumulative EPS goals, with 50% weight.

LTI Plan grants with respect to the 2021-2023 performance period have not yet been earned. For each performance-based goal, achieving threshold performance pays at 50% of target value, and achieving stretch performance pays at 150% of target value. To the extent earned at the end of the performance period, performance shares will be paid in the form of immediately vested shares of common stock at the end of the performance period.

The framework for establishing specific goals for the 2021 long-term incentive grant was similar to previous years. The goals were based on the Company's business strategic plan at the end of 2020. The goals motivated improved performance to align results to shareholders' expectations.

The performance goals and weighting for the period are set forth below:

Goal	Weight	Threshold	Target	Stretch
Return on Equity				
2021	50%	5.63%	6.25%	7.50%
2022		5.85%	6.50%	7.80%
2023		6.08%	6.75%	8.10%
Three-Year cumulative EPS	50%	\$1.58	\$1.97	\$2.36

The table below outlines the awards value and the number of shares granted to each Named Executive Officer in 2021:

	2021 Equity Award (Performance-Based Shares) #	2021 Equity Award (Time-Based Shares) #	2021 Grant Date Fair Value \$
James C. Hagan	10,649	10,649	177,625
Allen J. Miles III	3,801	3,801	63,401
Guida R. Sajdak	3,395	3,395	56,629

Clawback Policy

Under the LTI and STI Plans, if the Board or an appropriate Board committee has determined that any fraud or intentional misconduct by one or more executive officers caused, directly or indirectly, the Company to restate its financial statements, the Board or Committee may require reimbursement of any bonus or incentive compensation awarded to such officers and/or effect the cancellation of awards. This policy operates in addition to any (a) recoupment provisions contained in the terms of other compensation awards or programs and (b) recoupment requirements imposed under applicable laws.

Stock Ownership Guidelines

We maintain stock ownership guidelines for our NEOs. These guidelines were established to promote a long-term perspective in managing the Company and to align the interests of our shareholders and NEOs. The stock ownership goal for each of these individuals is a multiple of 1x salary. The guidelines provide the NEOs five years to comply. As of December 31, 2021, all NEOs were in compliance with the stock ownership guidelines. Information about stock ownership guidelines for our non-employee directors can be found in "Director Compensation" of this Proxy Statement.

Other Benefits

Qualified Retirement Plans

The Company sponsors a tax-qualified, non-contributory defined benefit pension plan (the "DB Plan") covering substantially all employees hired before September 30, 2016, including Mr. Hagan and Mr. Miles. The plan was frozen to new employees hired after that date.

The Company also maintains a tax-qualified defined contribution plan (the "Profit Sharing Plan" or "401(k) Plan") that provides for deferral of federal and state income taxes on employee contributions allowed under Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Internal Revenue Code"). The Company matches employee contributions up to 50% of the first 6% of eligible compensation contributed by the employee.

In addition to the DB Plan and the 401(k) Plan, the Company maintains an employee stock ownership plan ("ESOP"). The ESOP is a tax-qualified defined contribution plan in which our employees, including our Named Executive Officers, are eligible to participate when they reach the age of 21 and have completed 1,000 hours of service in the previous 12-month period. In general, pursuant to the terms of the ESOP, the Company contributes funds to the ESOP trust fund, and the contributed funds are allocated among all the participants' accounts according to their relative levels of compensation (subject to IRS limits).

Perquisites

The Committee supports providing benefits and perquisites to the NEOs that are substantially the same as those offered to officers of comparative financial institutions, which we believe are reasonable, competitive and consistent with our overall compensation program. In addition, we may also make available to certain NEOs the use of a Company automobile, as was the case in 2021 for the NEOs.

Employment Agreements and Change of Control Agreements

The Committee believes that our continued success depends, to a significant degree, on the skills and competence of certain senior officers. The employment agreements are intended to ensure that we continue to maintain and retain experienced senior management. We currently have employment agreements with our President and Chief Executive Officer, Mr. Hagan; our Executive Vice President and Chief Lending Officer, Mr. Miles and our Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, Mrs. Sajdak, in order to retain such executives. The employment agreements of Messrs. Hagan and Miles and Mrs. Sajdak provide for an initial three-year term subject to separate one-year extensions as approved by the Board at the end of each applicable fiscal year with minimum annual salaries, discretionary cash bonuses and other fringe benefits.

The employment agreements also provide uninsured death and disability benefits, as well as protection for the executives in the event the Company experiences a change in ownership or control. If the Company experiences a change in ownership, a change in effective ownership or control, or a change in the ownership of a substantial portion of the Company's assets, as contemplated by Section 280G of the Code, a portion of any severance payments under the employment agreements might constitute an "excess parachute payment" under current federal tax laws. Any excess parachute payment would be subject to a federal excise tax payable by the executive and would be non-deductible by the Company for federal income tax purposes. The employment agreements do not provide a tax indemnity.

Benchmarking Data and Use of Compensation Consultants

The Compensation Committee believes that utilization of appropriate benchmarks for compensation analyses is an effective method for evaluating executive and director compensation. Accordingly, approximately every three years, the Compensation Committee engages the compensation consultant to conduct market competitive reviews, which, generally include an assessment of compensation compared to market (e.g., industry-specific surveys and proxy peer group, where applicable), recommendations for total compensation opportunity guidelines (e.g., base salary, annual and long-term incentive targets) and a high-level assessment of performance relative to peers. The Compensation Committee uses this information to determine appropriate salary and incentive levels for executive officers and directors.

The competitive review was conducted in 2018 for reference with 2019 to 2021 pay decisions. This peer group was selected in October 2018 and included financial institutions of generally similar asset size and regional location. At that time, the Company was positioned approximately at the median of the peer group in terms of total assets, with asset size ranging from \$1.6 billion to \$4.2 billion. All banks were publicly-traded financial institutions located within the Northeast. The peer group used in the report presented for consideration of 2021 compensation decisions consisted of the following institutions:

Compensation Peer Group						
ACNB Corporation	Camden National Corporation	Financial Institutions, Inc.				
Arrow Financial Corporation	Chemung Financial Corporation	First Bancorp, Inc.				
Bankwell Financial Group, Inc.	CNB Financial Corporation	Hingham Institution for Savings				
Bar Harbor Bankshares	Codorus Valley Bancorp, Inc.	Orrstown Financial Services, Inc.				
BSB Bancorp, Inc. ⁽¹⁾	Enterprise Bancorp, Inc.	Peoples Financial Services Corp				
Cambridge Bancorp	ESSA Bancorp, Inc.	SI Financial Group, Inc. (2)				

⁽¹⁾ In 2019, People's United Financial, Inc. acquired BSB Bancorp, Inc.

It is expected that Pearl Meyer will continue to support the Compensation Committee in its 2022 executive compensation actions.

⁽²⁾ In 2019, Berkshire Hills Bancorp, Inc. acquired SI Financial Group, Inc.

EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Summary Compensation Table

The following table sets forth information regarding compensation awarded to or earned by our NEOs for service during each of the last three completed fiscal years, as applicable:

		Salary ⁽¹⁾	Non-Equity Incentive Plan Compensation ⁽²⁾	Stock Awards ⁽³⁾	Change in Pension Value and Nonqualified Deferred Compensation Earnings ⁽⁴⁾	All Other Compensation ⁽⁵⁾	Total
	Year	(\$)	(\$)	(\$)	(\$)	(\$)	(\$)
James C. Hagan	2021	588,691	229,133	177,625	147,991	67,498	1,210,938
President and Chief Executive Officer	2020	545,084	191,700	268,215	239,345	42,712	1,287,056
	2019	504,708	140,056	152,275	279,829	49,134	1,126,002
Allen J. Miles, III	2021	315,810	81,947	63,401	190,414	19,475	671,047
EVP and Chief Lending Officer	2020	300,771	70,400	60,372	267,863	16,101	715,507
	2019	286,449	50,272	57,496	281,421	27,751	703,389
Guida R. Sajdak	2021	281,934	73,157	56,629	_	20,860	432,580
EVP Chief Financial Officer	2020	266,161	62,300	97,904	_	18,421	444,786
and Treasurer	2019	252,399	47,577	50,882	_	19,738	370,596

⁽¹⁾ The figures shown for salary represent amounts earned for the fiscal year, whether or not actually paid during such year.

(5) Amounts in this column for the year 2021 are set forth in the table below and include life insurance premiums, 401(k) Plan matching contributions, ESOP contributions, dividends on unvested restricted stock and contributions under the Benefit Restoration Plan. The NEOs participate in certain group life, health, disability insurance and medical reimbursement plans, not disclosed in the Summary Compensation Table, that are generally available to salaried employees and do not discriminate in scope, terms and operation. In addition, we provide certain non-cash perquisites and personal benefits to each NEO that do not exceed \$10,000 in the aggregate for any individual and are not included in the reported figures.

	Life Insurance Premiums (\$)	401(k) Matching Contributions (\$)	ESOP Contributions (\$)	Dividends on Unvested Restricted Stock (\$)	Contributions under the Benefit Restoration Plan (\$)	Total (\$)
James C. Hagan	5,533	8,058	11,920	4,118	37,869	67,498
Allen J. Miles, III	1,498	4,627	11,815	1,535	_	19,475
Guida R. Sajdak	_	8,131	11,394	1,335	_	20,860

Amounts shown in this column reflect cash awards earned under the STI Plan, whether or not paid. For the 2020 year, however, due to the COVID-19 pandemic and the impact it had on our community, borrowers and employees, each of the NEOs unilaterally reduced their approved cash payouts under the STI Plan. In 2020, Mr. Hagan earned \$191,700 but reduced his payout by 31% to \$131,570, and Mrs. Sajdak and Mr. Miles earned \$62,300 and \$70,400, respectfully, and decreased their payouts by 27% each to \$45,412 and \$51,312, respectively. Amounts payable under the STI Plan were paid in February of the following calendar year.

⁽³⁾ Reflects the aggregate grant date fair value computed in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 718 with respect to restricted stock awards granted to our NEOs. For more information concerning the assumptions used for these calculations, please refer to the notes to the financial statements contained in the 2021 Annual Report on Form 10-K. The stock award column does not include the value of dividends paid on unvested restricted stock, which are included in the Summary Compensation Table under the caption "All Other Compensation."

⁽⁴⁾ Amounts in this column represent the increase (if any) for each respective year in the present value of the individual's accrued benefit (whether or not vested) under each tax-qualified and non-qualified actuarial or defined benefit plan calculated by comparing the present value of each individual's accrued benefit under each such plan in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 715, Retirement Benefits, as of the plan's measurement date in such year to the present value of the individual's accrued benefit as of the plan's measurement date in the prior fiscal year.

CEO Pay Ratio Disclosure

As required by Section 953(b) of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act and Item 402(u) of Regulation S-K, we are providing this disclosure regarding the relationship of the annual total compensation of the individual identified as the median paid employee of our Company and the annual total compensation of James C. Hagan, our President and Chief Executive Officer.

The individual identified as the median compensated employee was determined using a census of all full-time and part-time employees as of December 31, 2020, which totaled 357 employees, excluding the CEO. In order to identify the median compensated employee, we included compensation reported in Box 5 of Form W-2 for the full year of 2020. Base salary was annualized for employees who were hired during 2020. As there have been no changes that would materially impact our CEO pay ratio analysis, as permitted by the SEC rules, we have used the same individual identified in 2020 for our 2021 CEO pay ratio.

The annual total compensation for the median employee was calculated using the same methodology shown for the CEO in the "Summary Compensation Table" on page 31. Based on this methodology, the annual total compensation of the CEO for 2021 was \$1,210,938 and the annual total compensation of the median employee for 2021 was \$50,465. The ratio of these amounts was 24 to 1.

This pay ratio is a reasonable estimate calculated in a manner consistent with SEC rules based on our payroll and employment records and the methodology described above. Because the SEC rules for identifying the median compensated employee and calculating the pay ratio based on that employee's annual total compensation allow companies to adopt a variety of methodologies, to apply certain exclusions and to make reasonable estimates and assumptions that reflect their compensation practices, the pay ratio reported by other companies may not be comparable to the pay ratio reported above, as other companies may have different employment and compensation practices and may utilize different methodologies, exclusions, estimates and assumptions in calculating their own pay ratios.

Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year End

The following table provides information about outstanding equity awards under the Company's equity compensation plans at December 31, 2021, whether granted in 2021 or earlier.

Option Awards				Restricted Stock Awards						
Name	Grant Date	Number of Securities Underlying Unexercised Options Exercisable (#)	Number of Securities Underlying Unexercised Options Unexercisable (#)	Option Exercise Price (\$)	Option Expiration Date	Grant Date	Number of Shares or Units of Stock That Have Not Vested (#) ⁽²⁾	Stock	Equity Incentive Plan Awards: Number of Unearned Shares, Units or Other Rights That Have Not Vested (#) ⁽³⁾	Equity Incentive Plan Awards: Market or Payout Value of Unearned Shares, Units or Other Rights That Have Not Vested (\$)(1)
James C.	Date —	(#)	(#)	(a)	Date —	02/26/2019	(#)···	(a)··	11,690	102,404
Hagan	_	_	_			02/25/2020	3,008	26,350	9,027	79,077
	_	_	_	_	_	05/20/2021	7,135	62,503	10,649	93,285
Allen J.	_	_	_	_	_	02/26/2019	_	_	4,413	38,658
Miles, III	_	_	_	_	_	02/25/2020	1,104	9,671	3,314	29,031
	_		_	_	_	05/20/2021	2,547	22,312	3,801	33,297
Guida R.	_	_	_	_	_	02/26/2019	_	_	3,906	34,217
Sajdak	1/22/2013	22,965	_	6.82	1/22/2023	02/25/2020	977	8,559	2,933	25,693
	1/22/2013	13,410	_	6.82	1/22/2023	05/20/2021	2,275	19,929	3,395	29,740

The market values of these shares are based on the closing market price of the Company's common stock on the NASDAQ Stock Market of \$8.76 on December 31, 2021.

⁽²⁾ Shares granted on February 26, 2019, were under the Company's LTI Plan, are time-based and vest ratably over a three-year period beginning December 31, 2019. Shares granted on February 25, 2020, were under the Company's LTI Plan, are time-based and vest ratably over a three-year period beginning December 31, 2020. Shares granted on May 20, 2021, were under the Company's LTI Plan, are time-based and vest ratably over a three-year period beginning December 31, 2021.

(3) Shares granted on February 26, 2019, were under the Company's LTI Plan, are performance-based and are subject to the achievement of annual 2019 LTI performance metrics before vesting is realized after a three-year period. Shares granted on February 25, 2020, were under the Company's LTI Plan, are performance-based and are subject to the achievement of annual 2020 LTI performance metrics before vesting is realized after a three-year period. Shares granted on May 20, 2021, were under the Company's LTI Plan, are performance-based and are subject to the achievement of annual 2021 LTI performance metrics before vesting is realized after a three-year period.

Option Exercises and Stock Vesting

The following table sets forth the options exercised and stock awards that vested for the NEOs during the last fiscal year.

	Option	Awards	Stock Awards		
Name	Number of Shares Acquired on Exercise (#) Value Realized on Exercise ⁽¹⁾ (\$)		Number of Shares Acquired on Vesting (#)	Value Realized on Vesting ⁽¹⁾	
	(#)	(4)		(4)	
James C. Hagan	-	_	11,300	97,745	
Allen J. Miles, III			4,186	36,187	
Guida R. Sajdak	14,550	38,413	3,671	31,756	

⁽¹⁾ The figure shown for option awards was determined by multiplying the number of shares of the Company's common stock to which the exercise of the option related by the difference between the per-share closing price of the Company's common stock on the date of exercise and the exercise price of the options. The figure shown for stock awards includes the amount realized during the fiscal year upon the vesting of restricted stock, based on the closing sales price for a share of our common stock on the vesting date. Unvested restricted stock may not be transferred for value.

Pension Benefits

The Company, through Westfield Bank, maintains the Westfield Bank Pension Plan ("DB Plan"), which is a defined benefit pension plan covering substantially all employees hired before September 30, 2016, including Messrs. Hagan and Miles. The DB Plan was frozen to new entrants as of September 30, 2016.

In general, participants in the DB Plan who retire upon attaining the plan's normal retirement age of 65 are entitled to a monthly payment equal to one-twelfth of the product of (a) the sum of (i) 0.90% of the participant's "final average compensation" (generally, the participant's average annual compensation during the five consecutive plan years in the last ten plan years of his or her employment with the Company affording the participant the highest average annual compensation), plus (ii) 0.55% of the participant's average final compensation in excess of the average Social Security wage base for the 35-year period ending in the year in which the participant attains his or her Social Security retirement age *multiplied by* (b) the participant's number of years of credited service (not in excess of 35 years).

All employees hired before September 30, 2016, who have completed one year of service, in which the employee worked a minimum of 1,000 hours, who attained 21 years of age and were enrolled in the DB Plan prior to September 30, 2016, are eligible to participate in the DB Plan. Participants became 100% vested in their accrued benefit after completion of five years of service. Service prior to age 18 and for years of service in which fewer than 1,000 hours were worked are excluded for vesting purposes.

The following table provides details of the present value of the accumulated benefit and years of credited service for Mr. Hagan and Mr. Miles under the DB Plan as of December 31, 2021. The accumulated benefit shown in the table has been calculated assuming each executive terminated employment as of December 31, 2021. The present value of the accumulated benefit was then calculated assuming the executive will start receiving his pension at age 65. Mrs. Sajdak does not participate in the DB Plan.

		Number of Years Credited Service (1)	Present Value of Accumulated Benefit (1)	Payments During Last Fiscal Year
Name	Plan Name	(#)	(\$)	(\$)
James C. Hagan	DB Plan	27.33	1,723,636	_
Allen J. Miles, III	DB Plan	23.33	1,558,979	_

The figures shown are determined as of the DB Plan's measurement date during 2021 under FASB ASC Topic 715, *Retirement Benefits*, for purposes of our audited financial statements. For the discount rate and other assumptions used for this purpose, please refer to Note 10 in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements attached to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2021.

Nonqualified Deferred Compensation

Benefit Restoration Plan. We have also established the Benefit Restoration Plan in order to provide restorative payments to executives who are prevented from receiving the full benefits contemplated by the ESOP's benefit formula as well as the 401(k) Plan's benefit formula. The restorative payments consist of payments in lieu of shares that cannot be allocated to participants under the ESOP due to the legal limitations imposed on tax-qualified plans and, in the case of participants who retire before the repayment in full of the ESOP's loans, payments in lieu of the shares that would have been allocated if employment had continued through the full term of the loans. The restorative payments also consist of amounts unable to be provided under the 401(k) Plan due to certain legal limitations imposed on tax-qualified plans.

The following table sets forth information regarding nonqualified deferred compensation earned by our NEOs during the last fiscal year under the Benefit Restoration Plan.

Name	Executive	Registrant	Aggregate	Aggregate	Aggregate
	Contributions in	Contributions in	Earnings in	Withdrawals/	Balance at Last
	Last FY	Last FY ⁽¹⁾	Last FY ⁽²⁾	Distributions	FYE
	(\$)	(\$)	(\$)	(\$)	(\$)
James C. Hagan	_	37,869	_	_	201,068

⁽¹⁾ Registrant contributions are included under the caption "Change in Pension Value and Nonqualified Deferred Compensation Earnings" in the "Summary Compensation Table" on page 31.

⁽²⁾ Earnings did not accrue at above-market or preferential rates and are not reflected in the Summary Compensation Table.

DIRECTOR COMPENSATION

Meeting and Chairperson Fees

Directors' compensation is recommended to the Board by the Compensation Committee after consultation with our independent compensation consultant, Pearl Meyer, who reviews compensation of directors at similar peer institutions. In developing its recommendations, the Compensation Committee considers whether such directors are fairly paid for the work required in a company of our size and scope and whether such compensation aligns the directors' interest with the interests of the shareholders.

Our practice has been to pay a fee of \$1,000 to each of our non-employee directors for attendance at each Board meeting. In addition, each member of the Executive Committee received \$1,733 per month for meetings, each member of the Audit Committee received \$700 for each meeting the member attended, each member of the Compensation Committee received \$500 for each meeting the member attended, each member of the Finance Committee received \$500 for each meeting the member attended and each member of the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee received \$500 for each meeting the member attended. We paid fees totaling \$241,400 to our non-employee directors for the year ended December 31, 2021.

The Chairperson of our Board, Mrs. McMahon, receives an annual retainer fee of \$10,000 for her service as Chairperson. Chairpersons of the various Board committees receive a retainer fee based on recommendations made to the Compensation Committee by Pearl Meyer, the Compensation Committee's executive compensation consultant. The annual retainer fees are as follows: 1) the Audit Committee chairperson receives \$5,000; 2) the Compensation Committee chairperson receives \$4,000; 3) the Finance Committee chairperson receives \$3,500; and 4) the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee chairperson receives \$3,000. One half of the retainer is payable to the chairperson in January with the other half being payable in July of the same calendar year.

Equity Retainer Grant

In order to better align directors' interest with that of our shareholders, the Company pays its directors an annual \$18,000 retainer in the form of common stock for service on the Board. Under the Company's 2014 Omnibus Incentive Plan, directors received a restricted stock grant equivalent to \$18,000 on February 23, 2021. Shares vested in full on December 31, 2021. Under the Company's 2021 Omnibus Incentive Plan, directors received a restricted stock grant equivalent to \$18,000 on March 2, 2022. Such shares will fully vest on December 31, 2022.

Deferred Compensation Plan

We have established the Westfield Bank Directors' Deferred Compensation Plan for the benefit of non-employee directors. Under the Deferred Compensation Plan, each non-employee director may make an annual election to defer receipt of all or a portion of his or her director fees. The deferred amounts are allocated to a deferral account and credited with interest at an annual rate equal to the rate on the highest yielding certificate of deposit issued by us during the year or according to the investment return of other assets as may be selected by the Compensation Committee. The Deferred Compensation Plan is an unfunded, non-qualified plan that provides for distribution of the amounts deferred to participants or their designated beneficiaries upon the occurrence of certain events such as death, retirement, disability or a Change-in-Control (as those terms are defined in the Deferred Compensation Plan).

The following table sets forth information concerning compensation accrued or paid to our non-employee directors during the year ended December 31, 2021, for their service on our Board. Directors, who are also our employees, receive no additional compensation for their service as directors and are not set forth in the table below.

	Fees Earned or Paid in Cash ⁽¹⁾	Equity Retainer Stock Grant ⁽²⁾	All Other Compensation ⁽³⁾	Total Annual Compensation
Name	(\$)	(\$)	(\$)	(\$)
Laura Benoit	18,000	18,000	429	36,429
Donna J. Damon	15,000	18,000	429	33,429
Gary G. Fitzgerald	23,000	18,000	429	41,429
William D. Masse	22,500	18,000	429	40,929
Lisa G. McMahon	54,800	18,000	429	73,229
Gregg F. Orlen	19,000	18,000	429	37,429
Paul C. Picknelly	17,000	18,000	429	35,429
Steven G. Richter	35,800	18,000	429	54,229
Philip R. Smith	36,300	18,000	429	54,729

Includes meeting fees, committee and/or chairperson fees earned during the fiscal year, whether such amounts were paid currently or deferred.

- The amounts in this column represent the aggregate grant date fair value computed in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 718. The grant date fair value of the restricted shares awarded to directors in 2021 was \$8.17 per share. Shares fully vested on December 31, 2021.
- ⁽³⁾ Amounts represent dividends paid on shares of restricted common stock granted to our non-employee directors.

The following table provides information about our outstanding non-employee director equity retainer granted on March 2, 2022, under the Company's 2021 Omnibus Incentive Plan. Such shares will fully vest on December 31, 2022:

Name	Number of Shares of Stock That Have Not Vested (#)	Dollar Value Equivalent (\$)
Laura Benoit	1,975	18,000
Donna J. Damon	1,975	18,000
Gary G. Fitzgerald	1,975	18,000
William D. Masse	1,975	18,000
Lisa G. McMahon	1,975	18,000
Gregg F. Orlen	1,975	18,000
Paul C. Picknelly	1,975	18,000
Steven G. Richter	1,975	18,000
Philip R. Smith	1,975	18,000

Stock Ownership Guidelines

We maintain stock ownership guidelines for our directors. These guidelines were established to promote a long-term perspective in managing the Company and to align the interests of our shareholders and our directors. The stock ownership goal for the directors is a multiple of 1x retainer. The guidelines provide the directors three years to comply. As of December 31, 2021, all directors were in compliance with the stock ownership guidelines.

Non-Employee Director Stock Election Program

On December 17, 2019, at the recommendation of our Compensation Committee, our Board adopted a Non-Employee Director Stock Election Program (the "Program") to enable the Company's non-employee directors to annually elect to receive shares of common stock of the Company in lieu of all or a portion of their cash compensation ordinarily payable to them for their service on the Board. Once directors elect to participate in the Program, the election will continue in effect for subsequent years absent a revocation for the following calendar year. No shares of common stock of the Company delivered under the Program may be deferred pursuant to the Director's Deferred Compensation Plan maintained by the Company. The Program was very well received by our Board. Beginning on January 1, 2020, and pursuant to the Program, TI-Trust quarterly purchases stock in the open market on behalf of the participants and with respect to the Company's Insider Trading Policies. During the year 2021 and up through our March 30, 2022, mailing date, TI-Trust purchased a total of 16,603 shares of common stock of the Company on behalf of our directors participating in the Program.

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PERSONS

Related-Person Transactions Policy and Procedures

Except for the specific transactions described below, no director, director nominee, executive officer or beneficial owner of more than 5% of our outstanding voting securities (or any member of their immediate families) engaged in any transaction (other than such transaction as described) with us during 2021, or proposes to engage in any transaction with us, in which the amount involved exceeds the lesser of \$120,000 or one percent of the average of the Company's total assets at year-end for the fiscal years ending December 31, 2020, and December 31, 2021.

Transactions with Certain Related Persons

We make loans to our executive officers, employees and directors. These loans are made in the ordinary course of business and on the same terms and conditions as those of comparable transactions with the general public prevailing at the time, in accordance with our underwriting guidelines, and do not involve more than the normal risk of collectability or present other unfavorable features. Certain of these loans also require prior approval by the Board. This pre-approval requirement is triggered when the proposed loan, when aggregated with all outstanding loans to the executive officer or director, will exceed the greater of \$25,000 or 5% of Westfield Bank's unimpaired capital and unimpaired surplus. If the potential borrower is a director, he or she may not participate in the vote or attempt to influence the directors. Management and the Board periodically review all loans to executive officers, employees and directors. At March 15, 2022, loans to non-employee directors and their associates totaled \$2.7 million in loan exposure with outstanding balances of \$566,337.

We have also entered into a lease agreement with Mr. Smith beginning in April 2015 at prevailing market rates for commercial space located adjacent to the Company's headquarters at 9-13 Chapel Street, Westfield, Massachusetts. The annual lease payments under such lease were \$30,718 for the year ending December 31, 2021. The annual lease payment is subject to increases based on yearly changes to the U.S. Consumer Price Index. This lease has a termination date of January 5, 2023.

Compensation arrangements for our NEOs and directors are described above under the sections entitled "Executive Compensation" and "Director Compensation," respectively.

DELINQUENT SECTION 16(A) REPORTS

Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act requires our directors and executive officers, and persons who own more than 10% of our common stock, to report to the SEC their initial ownership of our common stock and any subsequent changes in that ownership. Specific due dates for these reports have been established by the SEC and we are required to disclose in this Proxy Statement any late filings or failures to file.

Based solely on our review of the copies of such reports furnished to us and written representations from reporting persons that no other reports were required during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2021, we believe that the filing requirements set forth in Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act were satisfied by the reporting persons during the 2021 fiscal year.

SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

Under SEC rules, beneficial ownership includes any shares of common stock which a person has sole or shared voting power or investment power and any shares of common stock which the person has the right to acquire within 60 days through the exercise of any option, warrant or right, through conversion of any security or pursuant to the automatic termination of a power of attorney or revocation of a trust, discretionary account or similar arrangement. Percentage of beneficial ownership is calculated based on 22,802,029 shares of our common stock outstanding as of March 15, 2022.

In calculating the number of shares beneficially owned and the ownership percentage, shares of common stock subject to options held by that person that are currently exercisable or become exercisable within 60 days after March 15, 2022, are deemed outstanding even if they have not actually been exercised. The shares issuable under these securities are treated as outstanding for computing the percentage ownership of the person holding these securities but are not treated as outstanding for the purpose of computing the percentage ownership of any other person.

Principal Shareholders

The following table contains common stock ownership information for persons known to us to beneficially own more than 5% of our common stock as of March 15, 2022.

Name and Address of Beneficial Owner	Amount and Nature of Beneficial Ownership	Percent
Dimensional Fund Advisors LP		
6300 Bee Cave Road, Building One		
Austin, Texas 78746	1,948,752(1)	8.55%
Employee Stock Ownership Plan Trust of Westfield Financial, Inc.		
141 Elm Street		
Westfield, MA 01085	1,653,980(2)	7.25%
Renaissance Technologies, LLC		
800 Third Avenue		
New York, NY 10022	1,555,141(3)	6.82%
Strategic Value Investors LP		
127 Public Square, Suite 1510		
Cleveland, OH 44114	1,161,575(4)	5.09%

- All information is based on a Schedule 13G/A filed with the SEC on February 8, 2022, by Dimensional Fund Advisors LP and its affiliates. As of December 31, 2021, Dimensional Fund Advisors LP was the beneficial owner of and had sole voting power over 1,895,000 shares and sole dispositive power over 1,948,752 shares.
- The number of shares listed as beneficially owned by the ESOP represents the number of shares of our common stock held by the plan trustee as of March 15, 2022. A total of 1,208,967 shares have been allocated to individual accounts established for participating employees and their beneficiaries, and 445,013 shares were held, unallocated, for allocation in future years. The ESOP, through the plan trustee (who is instructed by the ESOP Committee), has shared voting power and dispositive power over all unallocated shares held by the ESOP. The ESOP, acting through the plan trustee (who is instructed by the ESOP Committee), shares dispositive power over all allocated shares held in the ESOP with participating employees and their beneficiaries. Participating employees and their beneficiaries have the right to determine whether shares allocated to their respective accounts will be tendered in response to a tender offer but otherwise have no dispositive power. Any unallocated shares are generally required to be tendered by the plan trustee in the same proportion as the shares which have been allocated to the participants are directed to be tendered. In limited circumstances, ERISA may confer upon the plan trustee the power and duty to control the voting and tendering of shares allocated to the accounts of participating employees and beneficiaries who fail to exercise their voting and/or tender rights. The ESOP disclaims voting power with respect to such allocated shares.
- All information is based on a Schedule 13G/A filed with the SEC on February 11, 2022, by Renaissance Technologies, LLC, and its affiliates. As of December 31, 2021, Renaissance Technologies, LLC, and its affiliates were the beneficial owner of and had sole voting power over 1,389,862 shares and sole dispositive power over 1,555,141 shares.
- (4) All information is based on a Schedule 13G filed with the SEC on February 11, 2022, by Strategic Value Investors, LP, and its affiliates. As of December 31, 2021, Strategic Value Investors, LP, was the beneficial owner of and had shared voting and dispositive powers over 865,565 shares. Strategic Value Private Investors, LP, had shared voting and dispositive powers over 296,010 shares. Ben Mackovak, Marty Adams, Umberto Fedeli, Strategic Value Private Partners LLC and Strategic Value Bank Partners LLC each and individually had shared voting and dispositive powers over 1,161,675 shares.

Security Ownership of Management

The following table sets forth certain information regarding the beneficial ownership of our common stock as of March 15, 2022, by each director, each NEO and all our directors and executive officers as a group. Except as otherwise indicated, each person and each group shown in the table has sole voting and investment power with respect to the shares of common stock listed next to his or her name.

Name of Beneficial Owner	Position with the Company	Amount and Nature of Beneficial Ownership	Percent of Common Stock Outstanding(1)
Laura Benoit ⁽²⁾	Director	33,883	*
Donna J. Damon ⁽³⁾	Director	52,193	*
Gary G. Fitzgerald ⁽⁴⁾	Director	19,248	*
William D. Masse ⁽⁵⁾	Director	52,177	*
Lisa G. McMahon ⁽⁶⁾	Director	38,746	*
Gregg F. Orlen ⁽⁷⁾	Director	61,037	*
Paul C. Picknelly ⁽⁸⁾	Director	87,800	*
Steven G. Richter ⁽⁹⁾	Director	52,348	*
Philip R. Smith ⁽¹⁰⁾	Director	48,651	*
James C. Hagan ⁽¹¹⁾	President, Chief Executive Officer and Director	243,191	1.07%
Allen J. Miles, III ⁽¹²⁾	Executive Vice President and Chief Lending Officer	71,279	*
Guida R. Sajdak ⁽¹³⁾	Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer	43,062	*
All Non-Employee Directors	446,083	1.96%	
All Executive Officers and Directors as a Group (20	Persons) ⁽¹⁴⁾	1,082,541	4.75%

^{*} Less than 1% of the total outstanding shares of common stock.

- Consists of: a) 1,975 unvested shares of restricted stock as to which Ms. Benoit has sole voting power and b) 31,908 shares as to which Ms. Benoit holds jointly with her spouse and has shared voting and investment power.
- Consists of: a) 1,975 unvested shares of restricted stock as to which Ms. Damon has sole voting power; b) 31,513 shares as to which Ms. Damon holds jointly with her spouse and has shared voting and investment power; and c) 18,705 shares as to which Ms. Damon has sole voting and investment power.
- Consists of: a) 1,975 unvested shares of restricted stock as to which Mr. Fitzgerald has sole voting power and b) 17,273 shares as to which Mr. Fitzgerald holds jointly with his spouse and has shared voting and investment power.
- ⁽⁵⁾ Consists of: a) 1,975 unvested shares of restricted stock as to which Mr. Masse has sole voting power and b) 50,202 shares to which Mr. Masse has sole voting and investment power.
- Consists of: a) 1,975 unvested shares of restricted stock as to which Ms. McMahon has sole voting power; b) 33,778 shares as to which Ms. McMahon holds jointly with her spouse and has shared voting and investment power; and c) 2,993 shares as to which Ms. McMahon has sole voting and investment power.
- Consists of: a) 1,975 unvested shares of restricted stock as to which Mr. Orlen has sole voting power; b) 30,363 shares as to which Mr. Orlen holds jointly with his spouse and has shared voting and investment power; c) 1,212 shares as to which Mr. Orlen holds jointly with his daughter and has shared voting and investment power; and d) 27,487 shares held in an IRA for Mr. Orlen's benefit as to which he has sole voting and investment powers.
- ⁽⁸⁾ Consists of: a) 1,975 unvested shares of restricted stock as to which Mr. Picknelly has sole voting power and b) 85,825 shares of restricted stock as to which Mr. Picknelly has sole voting and investment power.
- (9) Consists of: a) 1,975 unvested shares of restricted stock as to which Mr. Richter has sole voting power; b) 54 shares that are held by Mr. Richter's spouse as to which he has no voting or investment power; c) 40,836 shares as to which Mr. Richter has sole voting and investment power; and d) 9,483 shares held in an IRA for Mr. Richter's benefit as to which he has sole voting and investment powers.
- Consists of: a) 1,975 unvested shares of restricted stock as to which Mr. Smith has sole voting power; b) 10,716 shares as to which Mr. Smith has sole voting and investment power; and c) 35,960 shares as to which are held in a 401(k) Plan for Mr. Smith's benefit as to which he has sole voting power but no investment power.
- Consists of: a) 22,529 unvested shares of restricted stock as to which Mr. Hagan has sole voting power; b) 168,751 shares as to which Mr. Hagan has sole voting and investment power; c) 43,141 shares held by the ESOP for his account as to which he has shared voting; and d) 8,770 shares held by our 401(k) Plan as to which he has shared voting and sole investment powers.

⁽¹⁾ Based on a total of 22,802,029 shares of our common stock outstanding as of March 15, 2022.

- Consists of: a) 7,339 unvested shares of restricted stock as to which Mr. Miles has sole voting power; b) 11,028 shares as to which Mr. Miles has sole voting and investment power; c) 32,635 shares held by the ESOP for his account as to which he has shared voting; and d) 20,277 shares held by our 401(k) Plan as to which he has shared voting and sole investment powers.
- (13) Consists of: a) 6,547 unvested shares of restricted stock as to which Mrs. Sajdak has sole voting power; b) 21,539 shares held jointly with spouse for which Mrs. Sajdak has shared voting and investment power; c) 7,155 shares held by the ESOP for her account as to which she has shared voting; d) 7,335 shares held by our 401(k) Plan as to which she has shared voting and sole investment powers; and e) 485 shares held by Mrs. Sajdak's spouse in custody for their son for which Mrs. Sajdak has no voting or investment powers.
- The figures shown for each of the executive officers named in the table do not include 445,013 shares held in trust pursuant to the ESOP that have not been allocated as of March 15, 2022, to any individual's account. The figure shown for total ownership includes all stock ownership for the Company's eight (8) remaining Section 16 filers who consist of the members of Senior Management and the Corporate Secretary and who are not named executives.

PROPOSAL 2

NON-BINDING ADVISORY RESOLUTION ON THE COMPENSATION OF THE NAMED EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

The Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act of 2010 requires us to provide our shareholders an opportunity to vote to approve, on a non-binding, advisory basis, the compensation of NEOs as disclosed in this Proxy Statement. This vote does not address any specific item of compensation, but rather the overall compensation of our NEOs and our compensation philosophy, policies and practices, as disclosed in this Proxy Statement.

Vote Required

The approval of the non-binding advisory resolution on the compensation of our NEOs will require "FOR" votes from a majority of the votes cast at the Annual Meeting by the holders of shares present in person or represented by proxy and entitled to vote on this proposal. Abstentions are not counted as votes cast and they will have no effect on the vote. Brokers do not have discretionary authority to vote shares on this proposal without direction from the beneficial owner. Therefore, broker non-votes will have no effect on the vote for this proposal.



THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS UNANIMOUSLY RECOMMENDS THAT SHAREHOLDERS VOTE "FOR" THIS PROPOSAL.

General

The compensation of our NEOs is disclosed in the Compensation Discussion and Analysis section of this Proxy Statement, the Summary Compensation Table and the other related tables and narrative disclosure contained elsewhere in this Proxy Statement. As discussed in those disclosures, the Board believes that our executive compensation philosophy, policies and practices provide a strong link between each NEO's compensation and our short- and long-term performance. The objective of our executive compensation program is to provide compensation which is competitive based on our performance and aligned with the long-term interests of our shareholders.

We are asking our shareholders to indicate their support for our NEO compensation as described in this Proxy Statement. This proposal will be presented at the Annual Meeting as a resolution in substantially the following form:

RESOLVED, on an advisory basis, that the compensation paid to the Company's NEOs, as disclosed pursuant to Item 402 of Regulation S-K, including the Compensation Discussion and Analysis section of this Proxy Statement, compensation tables and narrative discussion, is hereby APPROVED.

Your vote on this Proposal 2 is advisory, and therefore not binding on us, the Compensation Committee or the Board. Your advisory vote will serve as an additional tool to guide the Board and the Compensation Committee in continuing to align our executive compensation with the best interests of the Company and our shareholders.

PROPOSAL 3

RATIFICATION OF APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Audit Committee has appointed Wolf & Company to act as our independent registered public accounting firm and to audit our financial statements for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2022. This appointment will continue at the pleasure of the Audit Committee and is presented to the shareholders for ratification as a matter of good corporate governance. In the event that this appointment is not ratified by our shareholders, the Audit Committee will consider that fact when it selects our independent registered public accounting firm for the following fiscal year.

Representatives of Wolf & Company are expected to be present at the Annual Meeting. They will have an opportunity to make a statement if they desire to do so and will be available to respond to appropriate questions.

Vote Required

The ratification of Wolf & Company, as our independent registered public accounting firm for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2022, will require "FOR" votes from a majority of the votes cast at the Annual Meeting by the holders of shares present in person or represented by proxy and entitled to vote on this proposal. Abstentions and broker non-votes are not counted as votes cast and they will have no effect on the vote.



THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS UNANIMOUSLY RECOMMENDS THAT SHAREHOLDERS VOTE "FOR" THE RATIFICATION OF THE APPOINTMENT OF WOLF & COMPANY, AS OUR INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2022.

Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm Fees and Services

During the fiscal years ended December 31, 2021, and 2020, respectively, we retained and paid Wolf & Company to provide audit and other services as follows:

	2021	2020
	(\$)	(\$)
Audit Fees(1)	350,500	337,000
Audit-Related Fees(2)	53,100	52,000
Tax Fees ⁽³⁾	49,500	48,000
All Other Fees ⁽⁴⁾		4,378
Total	453,100	441,878

Includes audit fees for the consolidated financial statement audit of the Company, the audit of internal control over financial reporting, quarterly reviews, consents and estimated out-of-pocket costs;

⁽²⁾ Fees for benefit plan audits;

⁽³⁾ Consists of tax return preparation and tax-related compliance services;

⁽⁴⁾ Fees for WolfPAC risk management modules.

HOUSEHOLDING OF PROXY MATERIALS

The SEC has adopted rules that permit companies and intermediaries (e.g., brokers) to satisfy the delivery requirements for Proxy Statements and Annual Reports with respect to two or more shareholders sharing the same address by delivering a single Proxy Statement addressed to those shareholders. This process, which is commonly referred to as "householding," potentially means extra convenience for shareholders and cost savings for companies.

This year, a number of brokers with account holders who are our shareholders will be "householding" our proxy materials. A single Proxy Statement will be delivered to multiple shareholders sharing an address unless contrary instructions have been received from the affected shareholders. Once you have received notice from your broker that they will be "householding" communications to your address, "householding" will continue until you are notified otherwise or until you revoke your consent. If, at any time, you no longer wish to participate in "householding" and would prefer to receive a separate Proxy Statement and Annual Report, please notify your broker and we will promptly deliver a separate copy of the Proxy Statement and Annual Report following written or oral request. Shareholders who currently receive multiple copies of the Proxy Statement at their addresses and would like to request "householding" of their communications should contact their brokers.

OTHER MATTERS

The Board knows of no other matters that will be presented for consideration at the Annual Meeting. If any other matters are properly brought before the Annual Meeting, it is the intention of the persons named in the accompanying proxy to vote on such matters in their own discretion.

By Order of the Board of Directors,

Theresa C. Selosak

Theresa C. Szlosek *Corporate Secretary*

Westfield, Massachusetts March 30, 2022